NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting: COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL

Date and Time: TUESDAY, 16 JANUARY 2018, AT 6.00 PM*

Place: THE BRADBURY ROOM, APPLETREE COURT,
LYNDHURST

Telephone enquiries to: Lyndhurst (023) 8028 5000

023 8028 5588 - Ask for Melanie Stephens
Email: melanie.stephens@nfdc.gov.uk

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

*Members of the public may speak in accordance with the Council’s public

participation scheme:

(@) immediately before the meeting starts, on items within the Panel’s terms of
reference which are not on the public agenda; and/or

(b) onindividual items on the public agenda, when the Chairman calls that item.

Speeches may not exceed three minutes. Anyone wishing to speak should contact

the name and number shown above.

Bob Jackson
Chief Executive

Appletree Court, Lyndhurst, Hampshire. SO43 7PA
www.newforest.gov.uk

This Agenda is also available on audio tape, in Braille, large print and digital format

AGENDA

Apologies
1. MINUTES

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 14 November 2017 as a correct
record.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To note any declarations of interest made by members in connection with an
agenda item. The nature of the interest must also be specified.

Members are asked to discuss any possible interests with Democratic Services
prior to the meeting.



PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

To note any issues raised during the public participation period.

KEY ACTIONS AND SERVICE REVIEW PROGRAMME UPDATE (Pages 1 - 2)

To receive and update on the progress of key actions and service review
programme.

SAFER NEW FOREST PARTNERSHIP - STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT &
PRIORITIES FOR PARTNERSHIP PLAN (Pages 3 - 90)

To consider the strategic assessment and partnership plan for 2018/119.

COMMUNITY GRANTS TASK & FINISH GROUP (Pages 91 - 114)

To consider the findings of the Task & Finish Group and make recommendations to
the Cabinet.

WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 115 - 116)

To consider the Panel’'s future work programme, and make changes where
necessary.

PORTFOLIO HOLDERS' UPDATES

An opportunity for the Portfolio Holders to provide an update to the Panel on any
issues.

ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT

To: Councillors Councillors
S P Davies (Chairman) | C Coombes
D J Russell (Vice-Chairman) Ms KV Crisell
D A Britton A H G Davis
Mrs L D Cerasoli N S Penman

S J Clarke M L White



Agenda Item 4

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL - 16 JANUARY 2018

KEY ACTIONS AND SERVICE REVIEW PROGRAMME - UPDATE REPORT

1.

INTRODUCTION & PURPOSE

1.1 The corporate plan included a delivery plan which set out a number of key actions
and reviews to help contribute to the priorities set. This delivery plan was set out
against the background of continued funding reductions and was updated to include

reviews for 2017/18

1.2 This report provides an update on the work being undertaken as part of the regular
monitoring of the delivery plan.

2. KEY DELIVERY ACTIONS AND SERVICE REVIEWS

2.1 The tables set out key delivery actions and service reviews pertinent to the
Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel.

Revie Progress Update — January 2018

Housing Strategy

Review the Councils policy for the
provision of all types of housing in
the context of the Local Plan

The housing strategy outlines the way in which affordable housing will
be delivered and supported over the next 5 years. The draft strategy
was presented to Cabinet on 4 October, and an update was provided to
COSP on 14 November on the consultation process and feedback

council and the customer in the
longer term

Hil review, the recent Housing White | received. The revised final housing strategy will be presented to
Paper, the Councils role as a Cabinet in Spring 2018.
social landlord d the needs of all
residents of the District. For further information, please see the consultation feedback report.
Health & Leisure Centres With reference to the previous progress update, the August Task and
Service delivery review to Finish group meeting was postponed as a result of the Peer Review.
challenge existing arrangements | However, there remains a need to consider whether our existing
0.2 | and maximise outcomes for the provision will meet current and future needs. A report is being written

for cabinet which will outline the context and background, and set out
options, including the potential to appoint an external specialist to
support the review.

2.2 Savings arising from the reviews will directly contribute to the funding shortfall
identified in the medium term financial plan. These have not yet been quantified for

2017/18.

2.3 Reviews will continue to be monitored and reported upon to ensure they are

progressing and that objectives of the review are being met.

Future reporting,

however, is likely to be more closely aligned to the new corporate framework that is
being developed, further information on which will be brought to the March panel.

Page 1




3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 A clear focus of the reviews is continued financial responsibility with a view to
easing funding pressures.

4. RECOMMENDATIONS
4.1 That the panel:

a) Note the progress updates contained within this report.

For Further Information Please Contact: Background Papers

Sheryl Parry Annual Performance and Provisional Outturn
Business Improvement Project Manager — Report 2016/17 — Cabinet July 2017
Business Improvement & Customer Services Our corporate plan 2016-2020 Delivery Plan
Tel: 023 8028 5588 Cabinet Report Feb 2016

Email: sheryl.parry@nfdc.gov.uk

Page 2


mailto:rebecca.drummond@nfdc.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 5

PORTFOLIO: COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL - 16 JANUARY 2018

SAFER NEW FOREST PARTNERSHIP - PRIORITIES FOR
PARTNERSHIP PLAN

1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

1.1 The Crime & Disorder Act 1998 requires District Councils to have a crime and
disorder committee whose functions are to review or scrutinise decisions made, or
other action taken, in connection with the discharge by “responsible authorities” of
their crime and disorder functions. The Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel
fulfils the role of the crime & disorder committee for NFDC.

1.2 The “responsible authorities” for the area are:

New Forest District Council
Hampshire County Council
Probation Services

Police

Fire & Rescue Authority
Clinical Commissioning Group

1.3 These authorities form the nucleus of the “Safer New Forest Strategy & Delivery
Group” which co-ordinates the delivery of the responsible authorities’ statutory crime
and disorder functions. They are assisted in this by the following partners who ae
additional members of the Strategy & Delivery Group:

Forestry Commission

Victim Support

New Forest National Park Authority

Community First New Forest

Hampshire County Council Children’s Services
Hampshire County Council Adult Services
Hampshire County Council Youth Offending Team

2. STATUTORY CRIME AND DISORDER RESPONSIBILITIES

2.1 The responsible authorities’ statutory responsibilities include preparing annual
strategies for:

e The reduction of crime and disorder in the area (including anti-social and
other behaviour adversely affecting the local environment); and

e For combatting the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in the
area; and

e For the reduction of re-offending in the area

Page 3



2.2

2.3

3.1

4.1

5.1

6.1

7.1

The Strategy & Delivery Group prepares an annual Partnership Plan setting out
agreed strategies for the above.

The Strategy Group is required each year to prepare a strategic assessment to assist
in revising and updating the strategies. The strategic assessment of performance
against the Partnership’s 2017/18 plan, which will lead to recommendations for the
Partnership Plan for 2018/19, will be considered by the Strategy Group on 8 January
2018. The draft strategic assessment and partnership plan are attached as
Appendices 1 and 2 respectively. The views of the Strategy Group on both will be
reported orally to the Panel.

In its role as the Crime & Disorder Committee, the Panel is asked to consider any
matters arising from the 2017 Strategic Assessment, or the draft Partnership Plan.
Any comments the Panel might wish to make will be reported to the Cabinet on 3

February, when the Cabinet will consider both documents and make a

recommendation regarding next year’s Partnership Plan to the Council on 26
February.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report.

CRIME & DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

The Partnership Plan is directed at achieving the points set out in paragraph 2.1 and
as such is an important tool in addressing crime & disorder issues in the District. The
Strategic Assessment is an assessment of performance against the Plan and therefore
is significant in assessing the value of initiatives undertaken.

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

Plans and strategies are developed in accordance with New Forest District Council’s
Corporate Equality Objectives.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report.

PORTFOLIO HOLDER’S COMMENTS

Having recently assumed responsibility for the community safety function within the
District, | have been impressed with the efforts that are clearly being made to tackle
crime & disorder issues in the New Forest in a co-ordinated way.

Page 4



8. RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1 That the Panel considers the draft Strategic Assessment and Partnership Plan for
2018/19 and advises the Cabinet of any information, concerns or actions they might
wish to put forward.

Further information: Background Papers:
Rosemary Rutins Published documents
Service Manager, Democratic Services & Member Support

Tel: (023) 8028 5588

e-mail: rosemary.rutins@nfdc.gov.uk

or

Brian Byrne

Partnership Interventions Manager
Tel: (023) 8028 5588

e-mail: brian.byrne@nfdc.gov.uk

Page 5


mailto:rosemary.rutins@nfdc.gov.uk
mailto:brian.byrne@nfdc.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



safer® new forest

Targeting Crime and Antisocial Behaviour

Safer New
Forest Strategic

Assessment

The New Forest is one of

the safest places in the
uk to live in, work in and X
visit. The Safer New Forest R
Partnership is working to Y
make it even safer. A

HAMPSHIRE
- FIRE AND
West Hampshire

Clinical Commissioning Group

New Forest

DISTRICT COUNCIL

RESCUE
SERVICE




CONTENTS

10.

Page
INTRODUCTION ottt sttt ebe e sttt bbb ne e e 2
SOURCES OF INFORMATION......coeutrinrerieriiieeniisseretsesesesiereresessses sveeererestssesssennannenes 3
........................................... 4
....................... 35
WHY HAVE KEY CHANGES OCCURRED?....... ' T . SN 44
EMERGING RISKS AND TRENDS.. F W, O 45

Page 8




11

INTRODUCTION

The New Forest is an area of southern England which includes one of the largest remaining
tracts of unenclosed pasture land, heathland and forest in the heavily populated south east
of England. It covers south-west Hampshire and extends into south-east Wiltshire and
towards east Dorset. It is a unique place of ancient history, fascinating wildlife and stunning
beauty and was established as a royal hunting preserve.

The local government administrative area of New Forest District Council (290 square miles)
includes the New Forest National Park (206 square miles). Within the district there are 145
square miles of Crown land, managed by the Forest mission.

The New Forest is a working forest that has pro
agricultural practices conceded by the Cro
retained. The most significant of these is:t
donkeys in the open forest by authorised|

nearly 1000 years. Many of the
istorical tim local people are still
epasturing of ponies; cattle, pigs and

cal inhabitants known zommoners. These

Lymington, New Forest Rural Dis
District. The district is one of the
authority and withing

ning authority for its area. In other service
oIIaboratlve workmg with the dlstrlct

Based in the district al ere are approximately 8,000 businesses, 89% of which are
micro in size employing fewer than 10 people. Self-employment in the district area is
relatively high at over 14% and unemployment is consistently lower than in the rest of the
country. Leisure, tourism and marine along with their associated supply chains are
significant employment and economic sectors within the district. The council works closely
with the New Forest Business Partnership and ‘Helping local business grow’ is a priority.
Average earnings are low with 60% of the working population earning less than the UK
average. This, and the high average house price (£315,000; some £93,000 above the county
average), results in significant cross commuting between those who work in the forest but
can’t afford to live there, and those who can afford to live within the district but work
elsewhere. The district council is located between the two major conurbations of
Southampton and Bournemouth.

Page 9



1.2

1.3

1.4

The very special nature of the New Forest makes it an extremely attractive place to live;
both for those in work and those wishing to retire (25% of the population is over 65).
Housing development is made more difficult by many of the environmental constraints of

the area.

During the course of each year the Safer New Forest Partnership (‘the Partnership’) is
required by law to prepare an annual strategic assessment on behalf of all of the
responsible authorities who are members of the Partnership.

The aim of this strategic assessment is to provide an analysis of crime in the New Forest
during 2016/2017. The strategic assessment will assist t artnership with the preparation
of the Partnership Plan for the year 2018/19.

In particular, the next Partnership Plan will dra
assessment to inform a strategy for the red
for the New Forest. The strategic assessmé
that the Partnership feel should be the

Hampshire G
e Hampshire Fi
¢ Probation (Community Rehabilitation Company)
e West Hampshire Clinical Commissioning Group

During the course of 2017, the responsible authorities have worked together with the aim
of enhancing community safety in the New Forest. The responsible authorities have
contributed towards the preparation of this strategic assessment.

Page 10



2.2 In addition, throughout 2017, the responsible authorities have been supported by the
following non-statutory members of the Partnership:

e Hampshire County Council (Councillor Representative)
e Hampshire County Council Children’s Services

e Hampshire County Council Adult Services

e Hampshire County Council Youth Offending Team

e Community First New Forest

o Forestry Commission

* New Forest National Park Authority

3  REVIEW OF THE PARTNERSHIP PLAN 2017/18

eed by the Partnej
ite for public viewing’

3.1 The Partnership Plan 2017/18 was formal]
was published on the Safer New Forest

p on 6 March 2017. It
lowing this date.

b) Tackle the causal effects ofiof
violent crim

3.2

3.3

September 2017.
will have the opport

wo further dates in January and March 2018 when partners
0 update the strategic group further.

3.4 The following progress has been made on the implementation of the Plan during 2017-18:
Each priority is listed individually with an update from the lead agency responsible.

Page 11



3.4.1 Tackle the cause and effects of Anti-Social Behaviour - Lead partner NFDC in
partnership with Hampshire Police

The term anti-social behaviour (ASB) has no clear definition in terms of specific behaviour
or act. It is widely accepted as is described within the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 as
‘behaviour that causes or is likely to cause harassment alarm or distress to persons not of
the same household of the perpetrator’. It is due to this that the resolution to such
behaviour requires the input and support of many agencies in finding a resolution. In a vast
number of complaints that are lodged, when the source of the nuisance is advised of their
behaviour and the impact, this is often sufficient to stop the behaviour.

The impact of ASB on individuals and communities can be the most intrusive and upsetting
form of behaviour that affects the individual’s quality of life. The Safer New Forest
Partnership recognises this and through a coordinated approach, problem individuals or
geographical locations of concern are addressed through a multi-agency forum Partnership
Interventions Panel (PIP). The District Council’s well-established and productive forum is
where partner agencies come together to problem solve and action plan appropriate
responses to problematic individuals or areas.

Since April 1% 2017, the Community Safety department have chaired PIP cases concerning
83 people who are either directly involved in the causes of anti-social behaviour or as
victims. The panel have been able to formulate action plans to disrupt and divert the
perpetrators but also instigate safeguarding measures for victims were this is both
identified and appropriate.

PIP referrals by area

# New Milton
7%
: Lymington
11% -/ Ringwood

4 Totton
® Waterside

¥ Beaulieu

Fig 1: PIP referrals by area

Page 12



Supporting New Forest Families

The District Council recognises and supports the needs of vulnerable families. Locally the
District Council is the lead agency of the governments Supporting Families Programme.
Within the district area, this programme is operated under the name of Supporting New
Forest Families. This programme is supported by the Youth Offending Team, Police,
Children’s Services, Probation and wider partners to support families and individuals who
are identified as:

a) Involved in ASB or crime

b) Not in education, employment or training (or at risk of exclusion)
¢) Victims of domestic abuse

d) Substance misuse

e) At financial risk or risk of homelessness

f) Having health needs/failing to thrive

Supporting New Forest Families Profile

The cohort allocation for the New Forest area between April 1% 2016-March 31% 2017 was
118 families. Of this, 88 families were managed locally by NFDC and its partners with 30
cases being supported by a commissioned intensive service provided by Hampshire County
Council. The intensive service entitled Transform was a conglomerate of 3 separate
agencies working with an overall allocation of 30 families during the financial year.

The programme has worked with over 100 cases, consisting of over 225 children and young
persons.

Breakdown by age groups and gender

Adult Female

Adult Male

16-18 Female

16-18 Male

10-16 Female
® 2016-2017

10-16 Male
= 2015-2016

Up to 10 Female
Up to 10 Male
Under 5 Female

Under 5 Male

0 10 20 30 40 50

Fig 2: Age and gender of children/young person (2015-2016 vs 2016-2017)

Page 13



90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

Breakdown by age group

44

m 2015-2016

2016-2017

21

W

Under 5

Up to 10 10to 16 16 to 18 Adult

Fig 3: Age of children/young person (2015-2016 vs 2016-2017)

60
50
40
30
20
10

Parents per family

1 Single parent families

B Two parent families

2016-2017

Fig 4:

Number of parents per family (2015-2016 vs 2016-2017)

Page 14




Supporting New Forest Families Overview (2017/2018)

In the current year from April 1% 2017-March 31* 2018, the New forest Supporting
Families Programme will identify a further 118 families to participate wthin the
programme. The commissioned service for this year has changed to three new providers
working to deliver a combined provision which is provided by CSW, Motiv8 and Family
Lives. The programme also has a dedicated DWP (Department of Works and Pension)
worker to support with worklessness and assist with employment opportunities.

Each agency will only be allocated a maximum of 10 families over the year. This is to ensure
that the families identified are provided with sufficient support at a level consistent with
their needs and support plan.

The Supporting New Forest Group is above their year to date target on the number of
families identified and actively engaged in the programme. This is a positive position and
will enable the programme to extend the support to more families than initially anticipated
and provide targeted support to those most in need.

Families engaged against target
140
120 —
100 :
80 ——
@
60 0
40 o :
20 e
—)
0
Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18
Target @ Engaged

Fig 5: Current allocation from April 1°* 2017 to November 30" 2017

New Forest
Families Engaged (ytd) 88
Target Families (ytd) 79
Total Target 118
Intensive Nominations (ytd) 20
Total Intensive Target 30

Fig 6: Current allocation from April 1°* 2017 to November 30" 2017.

Page 15



3.4.2 Tackle the casual effects of offending behaviour and reoffending with a
focus on violent crime — Lead Partner Hampshire Constabulary in partnership
with Interchange/CRC

Hampshire and IOW Community Rehabilitation Company {CRC) manage all adult offenders
(over the age of 18) in the New Forest area. Following the implementation of the
Government’s Transforming Rehabilitation agenda, the CRC manages cases that are not
assessed as “High” risk of causing Serious Harm or any offender managed under the
auspices of MAPPA (Multi-Agency Public Protection Arrangement). These cases are
managed by the National Probation Service. As such, the;high level violent offences are not
managed by the CRC who are charged to deliver rehabilitative services to offenders
presenting a low and medium risk of harm. This doe: ude many domestic violence

focus of interventi rased around strengths and building positive social networks to
create a cognitive and social dissonance from offending behaviour.

Currently, the majority of CRC led interventions are delivered on a one to one basis by the
CRC Officer. However, contracts are being utilised with small providers to deliver focussed
interventions to women. CRC work in conjunction with the local drug treatment agency
(Inclusion) to effectively manage offenders subject to Court Orders with drug treatment
provisions or alcohol treatment provisions.

Page 16



Group provision for low level alcohol drug use, family support, victim empathy group,
service user peer support networks as well as the suite of NOMS (National Offender
Management Service) accredited programmes are available to New Forest offenders in
Southampton. There is no current group provision in the New Forest and the current
demand would not suggest that this is a viable option going forward. Unpaid
Work/Community Payback is delivered across the New Forest area and includes group
projects as well as Individual Placements, mainly in charity shops.

Violent crime remains one of the key areas that CRC staff work with service users to
address. Any case with an offence of violence will have a Risk Management Plan which
includes interventions that will be delivered by the CR

Manager to increase victim
d develop strategies to avoid
Councils Community Safety

awareness, increase cognitive awareness of anger is
violent crime in the future. The manager of the ¢
y tical Planning Meetings

ed time to identify, assess

er profile on the following page captures information from 13"

degree of varianc S
/es some indication on the profile of the New Forest area.

December 2017 and

10

Page 17



40

30

25

20

15

10

New Forest Service User Profile — December 2017

The following graphics represent data taken from the HIOW(Hampshire & Isle of Wight)
CRC case management system for all service users managed in the community within New
Forest district at December 2017.

HIOW CRC New Forest service users by gender

Female
25
13%

Male
166
87%

Fig 7: HIOW CRC service users by gender for the New Forest

Female service users in the New 4Forest are ata slightiy lower proportion than for HIOW
CRC overall where the proportion of females is usually between 14% and 16%.

HIOW CRC New Forest service users by age and gender

16
7
6 5
e 2..3 : b
e I 55 | .

Female Male

1820 ®=21-24 =2529 ®=30-34 W3539 WA0-49 mM5059 W60+

Fig 8: HIOW CRC service users by age and gender for the New Forest

11

Page 18



=

HIOW CRC New Forest service users by gender and postcode

33
31

26

19
16
13

5534

4 8 B R 3 [

= B = || -
-

Fig 9: HIOW CRC services users by gender and postcode for the New Forest

Service users in the New Forest have slightly lower levels of Public Order offences in
comparison to service users in the community for the whole of HHOW CRC; similarly there
are slightly lower levels of theft crime committed by New Forest service users with drink
driving offences slightly higher.

Challenges for 2018

As with other local agencies involved in the field of Criminal Justice, financial constraints
may offer additional challenges for delivery during 2018.

The main impact for the CRC is increasing caseloads and due to the financial need, keeping
staff numbers at a level concordant with restrictive budgets. A response to this could be
the increased use of group delivery with less work being completed on a one to one basis.
This represents challenges for the New Forest team due to the demographics of the area,
lack of suitable facilities in which to delivery group work and poor transport networks. This
may require offenders having to travel to Southampton for interventions and comply with
their court imposed orders/requirements.

The CRC remains firmly committed to reducing offending. The Payment by Results
framework is starting to provide more detailed information than has previously been
available regarding the “type” of offenders who are more likely to offend and this is
enabling the CRC to proactively target and provide more robust interventions to those
considered to be at risk. This is already happening in terms of identifying offenders who
have committed offences whilst under CRC management and these cases are monitored
and checked robustly to ensure that appropriate interventions are being delivered. This is
going to extend to cases who fit the profile of people who are more likely to offend; where
extra management attention are given to these cases.

12

Page 19



Hampshire Youth Offending Team (Hampshire YOT)

Hampshire YOT service comprises of Social Workers, Police Officers, Probation Officers,
Youth Support Workers and specialists in restorative justice, health, education, parenting,
substance misuse and sports/arts. The service is also supported by a large number of
volunteers who work together to prevent young people offending or reoffending.

The service is:

* Supporting and supervising children and young people who have been made the
subject of a court order because they have committed a criminal offence.
* Assessing and providing interventions for children and young people who are at risk

and young people held in custody at
Providing support for young people,

Working with parents to help them d
e Offering the victims of
processes and meet th

et involved in re orative
nded against them. This can help

13

Page 20




First Time Entrant Data: 01/04/2016-31/03/2017

Age & gender of young person
2015-2016 vs 2016-2017

14

12

10

ON B O X

Male

Female
Male

Female

Female

m 2015-2016 ®2016-2017

Fig 10: Age and gender of young person

Outcomes by young person & gender

2015-2016 vs 2016-2017

35
30
25
20
15
10 H
5 B d
o0 L= s - l &d [
& e & < Qo Qo & &
§o \(z;‘oo < «b‘e <P <P O’\b ,\\'z} O‘b
? & S > & 2
> PO N S I
s > & A B & B
& & ¢ ¥ & &P
& & s oF
C (JO ‘Q(‘ ,{}o $ <<«
& 3
*0 QQ, *0

#2015-2016 Male
#2015-2016 Female
2016-2017 Male
#2016-2017 Female

Fig 11: Outcomes by young person and gender

14

Page 21




First Entrant Data - Offences by type & gender

BT 20162017  2015-2016
_ Male Female Male Female
. ¢ o 4 0
4 0 5 1
| Domesticburglary ~ [EEEE 0 0 i)
fonitl 0 0 11 1
[ Motoring offences ~ [PEEE 0 i e
0 0 2 0
[Publicorder B o T i
2 0 1 0
[Sexuatoffences B 0 e 0
2 2 10 1
| Vehicletheft 0 i 0
15 1 7 3

Fig 12: First entrant data by offences and gender (2015-2016 vs 201 6-2017)

Weapons Education and Prevention Programme

New Forest District Council Community Safety team provide educational awareness
workshops on the implications of weapons use and possession. This are educational
lessons provided for SChQle, youth clubs and for people made the subject of or ordered by
the court as part of their rehabilitation.

Over the past year the team have delivered education sessions to over 1000 students. To
support this team have also provided sessional workshops for parents to underpin and
support the work of the team and their children.

The programme is modular based covering 6 main areas:

e Weapons

e The Law

e Social implications

e Medical implications
e Revenge and reprisals
e Firearms

The delivery of the programme is provided in an environment where participants, both
young people and adults can openly discuss their beliefs and misconceptions of the law and
weapons use. Over the years this has been delivered in the New Forest this has resulted in
the surrender of articles associated with violent crime.

15

Page 22



3.4.3 Continue to support the partnership and community in preventing arson
related incidents — Lead partner Hampshire Fire and Rescue

There were 349 fire related incidents in the New Forest Group in the 2016-17 period. This
is a decrease of 9 incidents compared to last year. In 2016-17 there were 195 primary fires
and 154 secondary fires. The table below shows the breakdown of fires by primary and

secondary, for the past 5 years. The table also shows the percentage increase or decrease

from the previous year. (Green = decrease, Red = increase).

Year Primary Fires | % Change | Secondary Fires | % Change Total Fires
2016-17 195 154 12% 349
2015-16 182 1% 175 7% 358
2014-15 184 1% 189 9% 373
2013-14 185 11% 208 393
2012-13 208 198 406

Fig 13: Number of primary and secondary fires attend by New Forest Group from 2012-2017

The table shows that the number of primary fires within the New Forest Group have
remained fairly constant at an average of 191 incidents per year. However, the number of
secondary fires have continued to drop year on year since 2013/14.

Primary fires are generally more serious fires occurring in one or more of the following
locations, buildings, caravans or trailers, vehicles and other methods of transport (not
derelict). Outdoor storage, plant, machinery, agricultural, forestry property, other outdoor
structures including post boxes, tunnels, bridges, etc.

Secondary fires are generally small fires, which start in, and are confined to, outdoor

locations. Typically, they are fires in grass or heathland, involving rubbish, street or railway
furniture or in derelict buildings and vehicles.

The total number of incidents in the New Forest Group has followed the same pattern to
that of the number of incidents within the whole County. The numbers of incidents have
continued to increase year on year since 2014/15 for the New Forest and the County.
Hampshire and the New Forest have seen the greatest increase in incidents during 2016/17
compared to the previous two years. This is also the case nationally which has seen an
increase year on year.

16

Page 23



Types of Incidents withinthe New Forest Group
2016-17

@ False Alarm
i Fire
W RTC

Special
Service

Fig 14: Total number of incidents by type of call out for the New Forest Group in 2016-17.

Types of Incidents within Hampshire 2016-17

H False Alarm
i Fire
W RTC

i Special Service

Fig 15: Total number of incidents by type of call out for Hampshire in 2016-17.

17

Page 24



Cause of the Fire
Accidental i

®Accidental @ Deliberate & NotKnown Deliberate l

400 Not known l

350
300
250
200
150
100

50

2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017

Fig 16: Causes of fires in the New Forest d/str/ct between 2014-2015, 2015-2016
& 2016-2017

The New Forest Group attended 1213 mudents in 2016/17 Just under half of these (46%)
being False Alarm incidents (553) The second largest incident type was Fire incidents,
followed by SSC (Speual Service Calls) mcndents and the smallest incident type was RTC’s
with 106.

Fires

3 year
trend

2012-2015

2015-2016 ——2016-2017

60

50

40

30

20

i0 -

Fig 17: All fires within the New Forest District between 2014/15, 2015/16 & 2016/17

18

Page 25



In Comparison, nearly half of all incidents within Hampshire are also False Alarms with
6615 incidents (47%). This is followed by 3715 Fire incidents, 2822 SSC incidents and 881
RTC's.

Deliberate and Accidental Fires Three-year trend

Accidental l Deliberate‘l'

Deliberate and accidental fires have seen a decrease in 2016/2017 compared to the
previous year. The trend for the three years is showing a decrease in deliberate fires and
accidental fires is showing a decline over the three years.

Causes of Fires in Dwellings and

Causes of Fire in the New Forest Commercial Buildings
Group
Dwelling

#@ Accidental

® Accidental
8 Deliberate

# Deliberate —

Commercial B @ Unknown
& Unknown :

0 20 40 60 80

Fig 18: Cause of fires in the New Forest Group and causes of fires split by dwellings and
commercial buildings

The pie chart above (Fig 18) shows that the most common cause of fires within the New
Forest Group were accidental fires, which comprised of over half of the total fires in the
year. This was followed by deliberate fires were the cause was not known.

The stacked bar chart (Fig 18) represents the cause of fire broken down by dwelling and

commercial properties. The chart shows that a larger proportion of the fires in commercial
and dwelling properties are accidental.

19

Page 26



300

250

200

150

100

50

Causes of Fires from 2012-2017 Causes of Fires by Building Type

- Dwelling Accidentat - Commercial Accidental

\ 80 Dwelling Deliberate —Commercial Deliberate
70 \/\

60

e ACCidE N2 50

- Deliberate 4o /
30 . s

20 \\\M ’/&,«t‘

10

2 3 15
RS il 2G50 divk 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

Fig 19: Causes of fires in the New Forest Group 2012-2017 (5 year trend)

The graph shows the trend of accidental and deliberate fires within the New Forest Group
over 5-year period. Accidental fires have continued to reduce over a five-year period.
Deliberate fires as a total have decreased moderately over a five-year period. Deliberate
fires have mainly reduced due to a decrease in deliberate primary dwellings, secondary
grass and secondary other outdoor areas.

The second graph shows the breakdown of the data by building type (dwelling and
commercial buildings). It shows that commercial accidental and deliberate fires have
decreased in 2016/17 compared to 2015/16.

Deliberate commerecial fires have seen the greatest increase, whereas deliberate dwellings
have decreased by four incidents. Home Safety visits and Safe and Well visits could be a
reason for accidental dwelling fires declining over the past three years.

20

Page 27



Safe & Well Visits

Hampshire Fire and Rescue provide safe and well visits to residents of the New Forest. Safe
and well visits are a person centred visit to identify and reduce risk to the
occupier/occupiers, taking into account their behaviours and the social and physical

environmental in which they live.

The visits combine a home safety check to reduce fire risk in the home, such as checking

and fitting smoke alarms, with health referrals for extra support where appropriate, to

improve the occupier’s health and wellbeing.

Free visits are available and are offered to the most vulnerable in our community for

anyone aged over 65.

The table below is an overview of visits undertaken across the New Forest during the past 3
years. The data provided is broken down to parish areas.

| Lymington

2014115201516 2016/2017

Hythe 67 b7 41
Ringwood 49 25 42
Totton 91 56 34
Fordingbridge 30 33 D
Lyndhurst 29 25 51
Beaulieu 4 3 3
Brockenhurst 13 9 42
New Milton 121 105 202
Burley 13 18 3
Hardley 70 48 44
Total 573 438 497
No. of primary dwelling fires in the New Forest Group 81 74 68

Fig 21: Safe & Well Visits carried out in the New Forest Group

21

Page 28



Outdoor Fires

Types of OutdoorFires in the New Forest Group

2016-17

M Primary Grass

i Secondary Grass

2015-16

i1 Secondary Outdoor Structure

i Secondary Outdoor Other

@ Secondary Refuse
2014-15

0 50 100 150 200

Fig 22: Types of outdoor fires within the New Forest Group

The number of outdoor fires has decreased in 2016/17 compared to the previous year by
20 incidents (16%). Since outdoor fires are classified as secondary fires minimal data is
recorded in relation to this incident type. Grass fires have reduced in 2016/17 from 74 to
60 and refuse fires have increased from 40 to 41 incidents. Most grass fires and refuse fires
were started deliberately. Most of the refuse fires occurred in car parks and refuse fires in
Totton. ‘

Overall most of the outdoor fires were started deliberately, followed by accidental and not
known how the fire was caused.

Outdoor fires peaked in July, August and September and then in April and May which
coincide with the hottest months of the last year. The month of May saw warm and sunny
weather were July and August was recorded as warmer than average, summer 2016 was
also the second warmest summer after 2013.

22

Page 29



3.4.4 Support victims of domestic abuse - Lead Partner New Forest District Council
in consultation with the Domestic Abuse Forum

The Integrated Domestic Abuse Service in Hampshire is provided by the You Trust which
supports women, men and children affected by domestic abuse. In the previous plans since
2015, the Partnership’s aim was to increase awareness and access of support services for
victims. The You Trust are in the second year of their contract covering Hampshire and the
New Forest, the partnership set about raising the profile of support services available for
victims who are:

a) currently living with perpetrators of, or experiencing domestic abuse

or
b) in need of therapeutic support from histori

positive r;r
families.

The forum has also s bjectives to both identify current or emerging voids in service
delivery and support the strategic delivery group in securing services for the residents of
the New Forest with a focus on an increase staff training and knowledge in identifying

vulnerable persons.

23

Page 30



50
45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10

Number of victims engaged with You First

47
40
37
35
29
26
B 17
10
| 13
9 8
- : .
{,\ﬁo *’,\,‘o (\'.\Q) \’,»b Qé,»"o :\,b “,»‘o \\,'\'b C,»b d,;\ \o,,\’,\ d :\’,\
VQ @’b \0 \\) ?"\) (,)Q/Q O(’ $° QQI \’b (<?/ @’b

Fig 23: Number of victims referred to You First within the New Forest

Male & Female Victims

37

.|
/ \ / \ :
WA /
\ I~
\ 15 === \ale Victim
9 \ " 3 / 414 =={f}=Female Victim
4
5 2 3
Z 0 Z
© © © © © © © © © A A A
a"\’ *,'\/ ‘\\,’\/ \,'\ oo,'\, Q,'\v &,’\/ A"\’ (;'\, (\"\’ 05 \’\

Fig 24: You First victims by gender within the New Forest

24

Page 31




Ages of victims

56yrs +

& 41-55yrs
126-40yrs

i 16-25yrs

# 0-15yrs

¢ Fig'25: You F/rst victims by age within th,;gNew Forest

25

Page 32




3.4.5 Promote road safety with an emphasis on Killed & Serious Injury (KSI) — Lead

0
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1
0

L S P P .
0. - 0- °~ Q~ - - - - Q. - Q. Qc .
N SN S SN SN S S S S SR ST M SN S

FFIF I FSHEFE] SCARNG

Partner Hampshire Fire & Rescue in partnership with Hampshire Constabulary

Since 2012-13 RTCs have decreased year on year, however 2016/17 has seen a 6% (6
incidents) increase in the New Forest Group. There is a decrease over the five-year trend,
but averagely the New Forest Group experiences 114 RTCs per year. Owing to the serious
nature these incidents have been analysed separately to the other SSC incidents. Although
the number of incidents has increased in 2016/17 the overall trend for the five years is
showing a decrease.

In addition to the increase in RTC incidents in the New Forest Group area the number of
RTC’s involving injured victims has also increased. However, the number of RTC fatalities
has decreased in 2016/17 to four fatalities compared to five in 2015/16. Over the five-year
period, both the number of ‘non-serious’ and ‘serious’ casualties have decreased.

There are many arterial commuter routes that run through the geography of the group,
and therefore it is not easy to address and educate the possible victims due to the majority
of the drivers residing outside of the group, and possibly even further a field.

The Number of RTCs Throughout the Day in the New Forest
Group

-
k2
O O

FPLFEL,L, L, LT LLELLFSELILSS
S &

N
PN A Ay q¥

S

&
N
S

O L
S

S
S
NN

™

F RSP

Fig 26: Number of RTCs throughout hours of the day (see fig 28 for location of peak time
RTCs)

As expected the main commuter times of the day, i.e. travel to and from the office are
when the majority of RTC incidents occur. A steady number of RTCs continue to occur
throughout the evening hours of the day.

26

Page 33



Location of RTCs

HAMPSHIRE

i New Forest Group HFRS RTC 2016117

> RESCUE
SERVICE

P T
e
\

Salitbury

Winchester

Bournefmouth K‘Q P

¥ copyright and datatass night 2017, OS5

Fig 27: Location of RTCs within the New Forest Group.

The majority of the RTCs have occurred in the main through commuter routes throughout
the New Forest Group. The M27, A326 and the A35 have experienced many of the RTCs for

2016/17. The towns New Milton, Lymington, Ringwood and Totton also suffered a higher
number of RTC compared to the previous year.

27

Page 34



;  HapsaRE  New Forest Group HFRS RTC Peak Hour 2016/17 |
» RESCUE ——
= SERVICE y
Salisbury "‘
Winchester
y,
,,,/
5 //
{
) e
e ; & ; J
\ Vo T A | V8 "(‘i +
\A\_ . Py _‘ 7 / . “, N f‘ ‘-—-‘1‘:
™ ; e % 5 4 v i
,—--.;.; . / | . . a‘_\,‘w,\? ‘:,:w\:\vv 501 \
? gl - AL N ot
( £ ay 4
¢ /3 \ T N Yol
% e i mafe N Te N
: “v ] ,, - ] . “. N
(@ , e > f
] { . . & 0 _,_..—'.
+ - W LY M) =
v — N w pr
: ,‘L_;i | v
: : e '@ 7
ne i with »‘ 7_.}&‘ #
Legend
@ Peak Hour 083:00 1559 e e

Fig 28: Location of RTCs within the New Forest Group during peak hours

The map shows that the RTCs that occur during the peak hours (i.e. the hours when the
most RTCs occur in the Group) are mainly on the main commuter roads A336, A31 and the
A35. There are clusters of incidents around the main town centres of New Milton,
Ringwood and Lymington. This is possibly due to grid locked town centres during rush
hours and could therefore be ‘lesser’ incidents with regards to severity of casualties etc, as
this map does not take in to account the severity of an RTC.

28

Page 35



Casualties and Fatalities

140

Number of Casualties in New Forest Group Five-year trend
120
Fatalities '
100 -
80 Slight Injury ‘
E Slight Injury
60 - . _ ) ) ‘
® Serious Injury Serious Injury
40 M Fatal
20
0
2012-13  2013-14 201415 2015-16 2016-17
Fig 29: Types of casualties within the New Forest Group
The total numbers of casualties have continued to decline in the New Forest Group over
the last five years, however there has been an increase in Serious Injury and Slight Injury in
2016/17.
It is important to note that thg:split betwéen casualties with slight injuries and those with
serious injuries should be considered with c'a,uyt,ion. This is because the data is taken from
the IRS (Incident Recording System), which records severity of the injury at the time the
report is written and therefore a slight injury evolve into serious injuries (or vice versa)
after the report has been written this is not reflected in the data in this report.
Casuailties by Incident Type 2012-17 Five-year trend
100
= Fire A
80
70
RTCs "
&0 s Fir e
50
5 T Other SSCs T
asmmm OQther SSC
30
20
10
0

2012-13  2013-14 201415 2015-16  2016-17

Fig 30: Types of casualty incidents in the New Forest Group 2012-2017
29

Page 36



RTC incidents are the cause of most casualties within the New Forest Group. The number
of RTC related casualties have continued to decline over the last four years, however in
2016/17 the number of casualties (75 incidents) increased by 37% compared to 2015/16
(47 incidents). The five-year trend for RTC casualties is showing a decline.

The five-year trend for fire related casualties is showing a decrease. The trend for SSC
casualties is showing an increase over the five years, the last two years have both seen an
increase.

§ O

¥

¥\.. FIRE AND

‘LNew Forest Group Police RTC 2016/17

HAMPSHIRE

RESCUE
SERVICE

Legend

A New Forest Pobos Data 201517

nemouth

Fig 31: Locations of Police RTCs

30

Page 37



RTC's Attended by the Police

iR New Forest  =dimHampshire
420 4 - 4420
| - 4400
415 A
‘ 4380

410 1 L 4360

- 4340
- 4320

400 ;
- 4300

395 L 4280

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Fig 32: RTCs attended by the Police over a three-year period

The numbers of RTCs the Police have attended in the New Forest Group have continued to
increase over the three years. However, the number of RTCs attended by Police in
Hampshire has seen a significant decline. The trend for the three years is showing an
increase in RTCs attended by the Police in the New Forest Group.

The chart below shows the number of fatalities, serious and slight injuries that the Police
have attended. Fatalities and Serious injuries attended by the Police decreased in 2015/16
compared to 2014/15 but increased again in 2016/17. Slight injuries decreased in 2016/17
compared to the préVious year.

Type of RTC

2 ® Fatal ® Serious i Slight

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

0 100 200 300 400 500

Fig 33: Types of RTCs attended by the Police.

31

Page 38



Speed Limit of the Road

70—
60 h—‘
g ®2014/15
50 il
J
20—
:

H2015/16

MPH

M2016/17

30

20

¥ ¥ ¥

200 400 600
Number of RTC incidents

o o (OR—

Fig 34: Speed limit of the road

The above graph shows that nearly ha|f of all RTCs attended by the Police over the three-
year period occurred in built up areas where the spe’ed limit is 30 mph. This is followed by
40 mph roads. There is a maximum speed limit of 40mph on unfenced forest roads.

RTCs by Month

) (11415 o—)(15/16 e )016/17

/ .

V' %

P %”ﬁ / W%“*-“’*w.,

’ 4 *a’,% f

A o \
RO N &2 N & 2 & & & Ko S - <)
) ™ o> N\ o .5 O o) ) 2 2 \
o«X < N Xy N le) Q N &3 N >
ki A W & X O & A8 o <
N o g & N R

Fig 35: Month the RTC occurred

The above graph shows that the busiest months for RTCs attended were in August, October
and November. The months with the least amount of RTC attended were in March and
April.

32

Page 39



RTC by Time of Day

—$==2014/15 =—l=2015/16 de=—2016/17

50 -

45 A

40 -

35

30 A

20 A CJ v

15 ~ |

10 4 PSS

0 ‘4 ; ’ N “ o S E e T RN S S oy S S e B —
OO0 00 0000000000000 0000 C 00
88888888888888338ceeac¢e9
OO0 000000000000 000 0 000 QO 9
=== = R = e e s A A R e A A R A
O~ NN ONOONO A NM< NI ONONOOO =" oNm
O 000000000 ™ ™™™ et o = vt = = NN NN

Fig 36: Time of day the RTC occurred

The peak time for RTCs occurred between the hours of 06:00 and 19:00 with the peak hour
being 17:00 to 17:59.

Safer New Forest Drink Drive Awareness Campaign

During December 2016 the Community Safety team, Policing partners and the Councils
Licensing team worked with licensed premises across the New Forest area. This activity was
to directly support our Policing partners in raising the profile of the ‘don’t drink & drive’
campaign and promote positive safe driving through a visual message on festive beermats.
During the course of December over 50,000 beermats were delivered to premises
reminding patrons of the importance of not drinking and driving.

33

Page 40



3.4.6 Reducing rural crime - Lead partner Hampshire Constabulary

Overall figures demonstrate a 14.6% increase in rural crime across the whole force area,
compared with this time the previous year. This may not mean that there is an increase in
crime as a whole, as there have been changes to how crime is recorded and also an
increase in people reporting crime. Further analysis and aggregation of data is required.

Even though evidentially there has been an increase in reported crime, Country Watch has
continued to work hard in partnership to identify the causes and tackle this. This has been
achieved through a co-ordinated, focused and directed approach. Particular focus within
the New Forest District has been provided through the ctive approach under

to remind visitors of the dangers

&

re provided a branded “safer new

a result of these o ‘and the rural communities feel valued and involved in tackling
local crime issues.

34

Page 41



NEW FOREST COMPARATIVE CRIME DATA
01/04/2015 to 31/03/2016 and 01/04/2016 to 31/03/2017

Crime can be split into numerous categories. The table below shows crime trends by type
that were committed within the New Forest during 01/04/2016 and 31/03/2017 and how

they compared with the previous year.

For a further explanation on these definitions of crime types, APPENDIX B is included at the

end of this report.

Crime Type 01/04/2016- | 01/04/2015- % Change
31/03/2017 31/03/2016
Violence with injury 1287 1079 16.16%
Violence Without Injury 1926 1505 21.86%
Rape 100 87 13%
Other Sexual Offences 222 152 31.53%
Robbery Of Business 12 7 41.67%
Property
Robbery Of Personal 29 20 31.03%
Property
Burglary Residential 362 302 16.57%
Burglary Business and 905 734 18.90%
Community
Burglary 1267 1036 18.23%
Vehicle Offences 787 616 21.73%
Theft from Person 73 48 34.25%
Bicycle Theft 150 134 10.67%
Shoplifting 668 454 32.04%
All other Theft Offences 1032 977 5.33%
Criminal Damage 1433 1369 4.47%
Arson 42 54 28.57%
Trafficking Of Drugs 30 33 10%
Possession Of Drugs 155 184 18.71%
Violence Against the Person | 3213 2584 19.58%
Sexual Offences 322 239 25.78%
Robbery 41 17 58.54%
Theft Offences 3977 3265 17.90%
Criminal Damage and Arson | 1475 1423 3.53%
Offences
Drug Offences 185 217 17.30%
Possession of Weapons 37 49 32.43%
Offences
Public Order Offences 701 550 21.54%
Miscellaneous Crimes 169 143 15.38%
Against Society
Total 20600 17278 16.13%
35

Page 42




4.1

Overview of incidents by type and comparison of crimes year on year:
New Forest Statistics
(Violence)
2500
2000
1500 1287 S .
‘ 1079 1101/04/2016- 31/03/2017
1000 +—-
#01/04/2015- 31/03/2016
500 4 — s
100 87 -
0 pa—— .
Violence with Violence Rape Other Sexual
Injury without Injury Offences
Fig 37: Violence crime statistics for the New Forest area
New Forest Crime Statistics
(Robbery & Burglary)

1000 f L . T

900 - -~ e :

800 -

700 - — -

600 -

500 - 101/04/2016- 31/03/2017

400 - —

300 - = 01/04/2015- 31/03/2016

200 - =

100 - §

0 o ! s — I

Robbery Of  Robbery Of Burglary Burglary

Business Personal Residential Business &
Property Property Community

Fig 38: Robbery & burglary crime statistics for the New Forest area

36

Page 43




New Forest Statistics
(Theft)

1200

1000

-

800 -

600
400 -

200 -

St Tes |65 . -
Vehicle  Theft from Bicycle  Shoplifting  All other
Offences Person Theft Theft

Offences

= 01/04/2016- 31/03/2017
= 01/04/2015- 31/03/2016

Fig 39: Theft crime statistics for the New Forest area

New Forest Crime Statistics

Miscellaneous Crimes Against Society
Public Order Offences
Possession of Weapons Offences

Possession Of Drugs

Trafficking Of Drugs
Arson

Criminal Damage | : , , 113:’13%3

([) 4(I)0 8(‘)0 12I00 1600

#01/04/2015- 31/03/2016
:01/04/2016- 31/03/2017

Fig 40: Crime statistics for the New Forest area

37

Page 44




Crimes by Sector Level

4.2 New Milton

Crime Type 01/04/2016- 01/04/2015- % Change
31/03/2017 31/03/2016
Violence with injury 236 171 27.54%
Violence Without Injury 242 217 10.33%
Rape 15 10 33.33%
Other Sexual Offences 38 22 42.11%
Robbery Of Business Property | 1 3 200%
Robbery Of Personal Property | 7 9 28.57%
Burglary Residential 73 54 26.01%
Burglary Business and 117 95 18.80%
Community
Burglary 190 149 21.58%
Vehicle Offences 79 57 27.85%
Theft from Person 11 7 36.36%
Bicycle Theft 13 19 46.15%
Shoplifting 141 78 44.68%
All other Theft Offences 112 130 16.07%
Criminal Damage 164 184 12.20%
Arson 2 3 50%
Trafficking Of Drugs 4 2 50%
Possession Of Drugs 19 38 100%
Violence Against the Person 478 388 18.83%
Sexual Offences 53 32 39.62%
Robbery 8 12 50%
Theft Offences 546 440 19.41%
Criminal Damage and Arson 166 187 12.65%
Offences
Drug Offences 23 40 73.91%
Possession of Weapons 8 15 87.5%
Offences
Public Order Offences 64 103 60.94%
Miscellaneous Crimes Against | 34 21 38.24%
Society
Total 2944 2486 15.56%
Anti-social behaviour 445 475 6.74%
38

Page 45



4.3

Lymington
Crime Type 01/04/2016- 01/04/2015- % Change
31/03/2017 31/03/2016
Violence with injury 183 177 3.28%
Violence Without Injury 285 233 18.25%
Rape 9 11 22.22%
Other Sexual Offences 17 22 29.41%
Robbery Of Business Property | 1 0 100%
Robbery Of Personal Property | 5 1 80%
Burglary Residential 56 72 28.57%
Burglary Business and 122 106 13.11%
Community
Burglary 178 178 0%
Vehicle Offences 112 75 33.04%
Theft from Person 8 8 0%
Bicycle Theft 47 24 48.94%
Shoplifting 129 66 48.84%
All other Theft Offences 205 179 12.68%
Criminal Damage 201 214 6.47%
Arson 6 12 100%
Trafficking Of Drugs 6 3 50%
Possession Of Drugs 25 38 52%
Violence Against the Person 468 410 12.39%
Sexual Offences 26 33 26.92%
Robbery 6 1 83.33%
Theft Offences 679 530 21.94%
Criminal Damage and Arson 207 226 9.18%
Offences
Drug Offences 31 41 32.26%
Possession of Weapons 8 8 0%
Offences
Public Order Offences 105 75 28.57%
Miscellaneous Crimes Against 19 11 42.11%
Society
Total 3144 2754 12.40%
Anti-social behaviour 449 425 5.35%
39

Page 46




4.4 Ringwood and Fordingbridge

Crime Type 01/04/2016- 01/04/2015- % Change
31/03/2017 31/03/2016
Violence with injury 187 156 16.58%
Violence Without Injury 281 240 14.59%
Rape 10 14 40%
Other Sexual Offences 28 22 21.43%
Robbery Of Business Property | O 0 0%
Robbery Of Personal Property | 3 4 33.33%
Burglary Residential 48 48 0%
Burglary Business and 289 175 39.45%
Community
Burglary 337 223 33.83%
Vehicle Offences 175 142 18.86%
Theft from Person 32 10 68.75%
Bicycle Theft 8 18 125%
Shoplifting 108 103 4.63%
All other Theft Offences 220 186 15.45%
Criminal Damage 288 192 33.33%
Arson 5 6 20%
Trafficking Of Drugs 5 6 20%
Possession Of Drugs 28 30 7.14%
Violence Against the Person 468 396 15.38%
Sexual Offences 38 36 5.26%
Robbery 3 4 33.33%
Theft Offences 880 682 22.5%
Criminal Damage and Arson 293 198 32.42%
Offences
Drug Offences 33 36 9.10%
Possession of Weapons 5 7 40%
Offences
Public Order Offences 152 123 19.08%
Miscellaneous Crimes Against | 30 30 0%
Society
Total 3954 3087 21.93%
rAnti-sociaI behaviour 485 465 4.12%
40

Page 47




4.5 New Forest Heart

Crime Type 01/04/2016- 01/04/2015- % Change
31/03/2017 31/03/2016
Violence with injury 80 74 7.5%
Violence Without Injury 120 83 30.83%
Rape 4 5 25%
Other Sexual Offences 15 10 33.33%
Robbery Of Business Property | 0 1 100%
Robbery Of Personal Property | 3 0 66.67%
Burglary Residential 23 24 4.85%
Burglary Business and 71 88 23.94%
Community
Burglary 94 112 19.15%
Vehicle Offences 160 117 26.88%
Theft from Person 6 6 0%
Bicycle Theft 16 9 43.75%
Shoplifting 21 17 19.05%
All other Theft Offences 114 107 6.14%
Criminal Damage 59 106 79.66%
Arson 4 5 25%
Trafficking Of Drugs 1 1 0%
Possession Of Drugs 23 12 47.83%
Violence Against the Person 200 157 21.5%
Sexual Offences 19 16 15.79%
Robbery 3 1 66.66%
Theft Offences 411 370 9.98%
Criminal Damage and Arson 63 112 77.78%
Offences
Drug Offences 24 13 45.83%
Possession of Weapons 5 4 20%
Offences
Public Order Offences 55 57 3.64%
Miscellaneous Crimes Against | 7 3 57.14%
Society
Total 1601 1510 5.68%
Anti-social behaviour 184 184 0%
41

Page 48



4.6 Hythe

Crime Type 01/04/2016- 01/04/2015- % Change
31/03/2017 31/03/2016
Violence with injury 312 248 20.51%
Violence Without Injury 518 405 21.81%
Rape 32 22 31.25%
Other Sexual Offences 63 41 34.92%
Robbery Of Business Property | 3 2 33.33%
Robbery Of Personal Property | 4 2 50%
Burglary Residential 45 49 8.89%
Burglary Business and 84 86 2.38%
Community
Burglary 129 135 4.65%
Vehicle Offences 91 75 17.58%
Theft from Person 7 5 28.57%
Bicycle Theft 17 22 29.41%
Shoplifting 120 52 56.67%
All other Theft Offences 169 162 4.14%
Criminal Damage 368 341 7.34%
Arson 15 20 33.33%
Trafficking Of Drugs 9 14 55.56%
Possession Of Drugs 27 25 7.41%
Violence Against the Person 830 653 21.36%
Sexual Offences 95 63 33.68%
Robbery 7 4 42.86%
Theft Offences 533 451 15.38%
Criminal Damage and Arson 383 361 5.74%
Offences
Drug Offences 36 39 8.33%
Possession of Weapons 8 3 0%
Offences
Public Order Offences 155 176 13.54%
Miscellaneous Crimes Against | 42 50 19.05%
Society
Total 4102 3533 13.87%
ﬁnti-social behaviour {738 825 11.79%
42

Page 49




4.7 Totton

Crime Type 01/04/2016- 01/04/2015- % Change
31/03/2017 31/03/2016
Violence with injury 284 242 14.79%
Violence Without Injury 444 320 27.93%
Rape 26 17 34.62%
Other Sexual Offences 48 31 35.41%
Robbery Of Business Property | 7 1 85.71%
Robbery Of Personal Property | 7 4 42.86%
Burglary Residential 117 55 53%
Burglary Business and 222 184 17.12%
Community
Burglary 339 239 29.5%
Vehicle Offences 163 137 15.95%
Theft from Person 7 12 71.43%
Bicycle Theft 49 42 14.29%
Shoplifting 149 138 7.38%
All other Theft Offences 203 207 1.97%
Criminal Damage 349 331 5.16%
Arson 10 8 20%
Trafficking Of Drugs 5 7 40%
Possession Of Drugs 33 40 21.21%
Violence Against the Person 728 562 22.80%
Sexual Offences 74 48 35.14%
Robbery 14 5 64.29%
Theft Offences 910 775 14.84%
Criminal Damage and Arson 359 339 5.57%
Offences
Drug Offences 38 47 23.68%
Possession of Weapons 16 7 56.25%
Offences
Public Order Offences 169 124 26.63%
Miscellaneous Crimes Against | 32 27 15.63%
Society
Total 4802 3949 17.76%
Anti-social behaviour 702 679 3.28%
43

Page 50




WHY HAVE KEY CHANGES OCCURRED?

The New Forest district policing area experienced an overall rise in crime of 16% when
compared with the previous year. This was set against an overall countywide rise of 13% in
all crime. Unfortunately this rise in recorded crime has continued into the 2017/2018
reporting year with overall crime 12% higher than last year. Again the county average has
increased with a further 11.3% rise.

Crime data integrity continues to play a role in this increase with continued improvements
being made in our recording practices as a result of prewous HMIC inspections and
recommendations.

Examination of public order and violence offences within the New Forest have
demonstrated a trend whereby previous anti-socia our incidents are now being

saw a 55% increase eant an extra 15 offences over the 12 month period. This
increase was mainly inZFotton which recorded an extra 9 offences.

The district has seen a 34.7% increase in recorded sexual assault over the reporting period.
It is important to recognise that this increase reflects a large increase in reported historical
crime whereby the victim has felt confident enough to come forward. This increase reflects
a national trend where there has been an increase in awareness and confidence in public
authorities to treat allegations seriously and sensitively. Countywide the increase in sexual
assault reporting is 21.4%.

The priority areas of reducing rural crime has been considered and over the reporting

period we saw a 12.8% increase in all rural crime. 5% lower than the district crime level.

This level does not necessarily reflect obvious rural specific crime issues such as wildlife
a4

Page 51



offences, poaching or machinery and equipment theft but rather all crime types reported
in a rural beat area.

Initiatives to reduce rural crime continue through local policing including neighbourhood
teams and our Country watch unit working in partnership with rural stakeholders.

EMERGING RISKS AND TRENDS

Hampshire Constabulary Strategic Assessment is created to provide a comprehensive
picture of the strategic risks and threats affecting the communities of Hampshire and the

of key threats and underlying
It is intended to enable the

vulnerability. .
Opportunities and ¢ allenges arising from rapidly advancing technology and the changing
face of crime is |dent1ﬂed as a key theme. The impact of cyber enabled offending is once
again recognised in fraud, sexual and child abuse offences as a key threat; as is the
organisational ability to identify, analyse and respond effectively to these crimes. The
Digital Intelligence &

Investigation project is leading the response to this challenge, however it is recognised that
the developing nature of this crime and the associated technology present a real challenge
to law enforcement. The challenges in this area have therefore contributed to the increase
in MoRILE threat score for a variety of priority areas.

The following summary of issues explore some those that, following the initial MoRiLe
scoring, should be considered as priorities for the coming year.

45

Page 52



Children at Risk

Children at risk from criminally motivated exploitation is identified as a key strategic risk
throughout the Hampshire constabulary Strategic assessment of 2017.

Risks are evident in relation to those criminally and/or sexually exploited by drug networks,
linked to modern slavery or vulnerable to cyber enabled extortion. Drivers for these
vulnerabilities are well documented and include domestic abuse situations and missing
episodes. An overarching approach emphasising the requirement to identify all young
people vulnerable to exploitation would ensure that all are appropriately safeguarded and
are afforded equitable opportunities. This will require the support of all partner agencies
co-ordinated through the safer new forest strategy and delivery group.

Modern Slavery & Human Trafficking

exploitation are key threats.

Drug Related Harm

and is the acknowledged driver
f vulnerable adults and children.
-curkences showing a rise. The Op
management of offenders is
ducing harm and tackling

46

Page 53



COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

In accordance with the Partnership Plan 2017/18, during 2017 formal links were
established with the New Forest District Association of Local Councils and other Town
and Parish Councils in the area. Representatives from Hampshire Constabulary and
Hampshire Fire and Rescue attended a number of meetings of the Association in order
to engage with the local councils and to facilitate the views of the community being
brought before the Partnership for consideration.

The Partnership continues to maintain its public website, with useful information for
members of the public on community safety issues.

As part of the Partnership’s obligation to enga people and organisations that
live and work in the New Forest, members ¢ were invited to attend the

47

Page 54



PRIORITIES FOR 2018/19

Recommended Priorities

The following priorities are identified as increasing emerging risks and concerns for
residents of the New Forest. Further discussion is to be held at the Safer New Forest
Strategy & Delivery Group on January 8" 2018.

Children at Risk

Modern Slavery & Human Trafficking
Drug Related Harm

Domestic Abuse

The Police and Crime Commissioner’s plan is available at:

https://www.hampshire-pcc.gov.uk/plan

48

Page 55



9G abed

Tackle the
cause and
effects of
anti-social
behaviour

New Forest
District Council
in partnership
with
Hampshire
Constabulary

Brian Byrne,
Partnership
intervention
Manager

&

Chief Inspector
Rob Mitchell

Youth Offending Team and Probat
in identifying perpetratogs of ASB.

implemen
it

ACTION PLAN -2017/18

ion in overall number of

i

satisfaction and increased
confidence. This will be
quantified through the
measurement of reported
cases and incidents of ASB.

APPENDIX A

NFDC Community Safety Team to
oversee and support with
Supporting Families Programme
and its partners through positive
divertive actions or punitive
measurements where
appropriate.

Partnership Interventions Panel
to formulate action plans and
implement risk assessment when
dealing with perpetrators of ASB
with a focus on victim impact.

Utilise the Restorative Justice
Programme as a means of
deterring perpetrators of ASB and
providing reparation work to
make good any harm.

49



/S abed

1.2

Plan seasonal events with partners to
ensure appropriate resources and pre

planning are in place for major events.

Safety Advisory Group and Licensing
Team to notify the NFDC Community
Safety Team of known events that 4
may have an impact on the

Seek to minimise the effects of
negative behaviour towards
es and victims of

NFDC Community Safety Team
and Hampshire Police with core
partners to devise plan and direct
resources where required to
known seasonal events such as
Halloween, Mid-Term educational
breaks and major sporting events.

Tackle the
causal effects
of offending
behaviour
and
reoffending
with a focus
on violent
crime

Hampshire
Constabulary in
partnership with
Interchange/
CRC

Chief Inspector
Rob Mitchell
&

Dean Hatton,

criminal justice system by
perpetrators.

Joint working with Schools, Youth
Centres, Youth Offending Team
and the Children and Young
Persons Alliance.

Utilising the Safe4me Schools
educational package for delivery.

| Seek to minimise the harm to

others from assaults with and
without injury in mental health
units. One measure would be
to see a reduction of reports
compared to the previous 12
months.

Continue with ongoing
partnership work with Southern
Health NHS Foundation Trust.
Continued partnership work with
The Bluebird Unit involving
information sharing and accurate
recording of risks.

Implement and review action
plans and threat assessments
with partners.

50




3G abed

Interchange
Manager 2.2 | Continue to seek to reduce domestic | Reduction in number of DV Partnership work with

abuse through partnership work. assaults gs proportion to stakeholders to identify those at
(This has been carried over from the risk.

2016/17 Action Plan)

ldentify perpetrators through
partnership information and
manage the risk posed.

Prevention work through use of
Domestic Violence Prevention
Notices and formal police
outcomes.

Intervention with perpetrators
whilst in police custody (Op Cara)
when in custody.

Neighbourhood Officers to work
closely with partnership
processes (MARAC/MASH) where
local knowledge will allow
engagement and problem solving.

Reduction in levels of youth on | Support the delivery of SafedMe

youth related violence schools programme by partners,
compared to previous 12 joint work with schools across
months District including supporting

education around knife and

51




65 abed

2.4

Ensure that offenders subject to Court

Orders and Licences ae given access
to the appropriate rehabilitative

activities and that, where necessary,
correct enforcement action is taken

Reduction in offending and
harm

weapon use.

Wider work with Supporting
Families group and domestic
abuse priority to address wider
DV issues in the District which can
form violence issues for young
people.

CRC offenders to complete
Orders successfully in 75% of
cases.

Reach action to be taken within 8
days of the unacceptable
absence.

CRC Manager to liaise with local
police to share information and
agree to joint actions to reduce
risks of further offending.

Use of assessments of offenders’
needs to make appropriate local
referrals.

Evidence of delivery to accredited
programmes such as Building
Better Relationships and Thinking
Skills Programme.

52




09 abed

Close working relationships with
the local drug treatment agency.

Continue to Hampshire Fire | 3.1 | Continue to lead the New Forest All of this essential work will be
support the and Rescue Arson Reduction Forum towards , centrally driven through the
partnership Service proactively identifying and positively continued vision of the Strategic
and addressing all potential/ongoings Partnership; albeit actively co-
community in | Dan Tasker problems associated with delib ordinated and locally delivered
preventing Group Manager fire-setting activity through the excellent work of the
arson related | Response multi-agency “Arson Reduction
incidents Forum”, chaired by HFRS.
Information exchange and “Task
Force” delivery will be greatly
supported and better facilitated
by the co-location of the two
Police/Fire Stations in the East
and West of the New Forest.
Reduction in arson-related Wider, more effective use of
_Lincidents. SafetyNet will also support this
| Increased level of information sharing.
detection/conviction for
repeat offenders
Support New Forest Increase in access to support NFDC Community Safety Team,
victims of District Council services. with NFDC funds.
domestic (in consultation commissione“ srvice for victims of
abuse with the Domestic Abuse.
Domestic Abuse Alternating advertising campaign,
Forum as both digital and print for improved

53




T9 abed

necessary)

Brian Byrne,
Partnership
Intervention
Manager

awareness.

4.2

Upskill Council Housing staff on the

use of screening tools for identifying
victims of Domestic Abuse and sign#
posting them to support services:

 identification and

NFDC Community Safety Team
with You First.

NFDC Community Safety Team
though permanent participation
at the Domestic Abuse forum.

effects of HD“

Increase in cohort size for
families with recorded
Domestic Abuse.

Supporting Families Programme,
both local and intensive services.
Access to the Supporting Families
budget and the strategic
community safety grant

54




29 abed

Promote
road safety
with an
empbhasis on
Killed &
Serious Injury
(KSI)

Hampshire Fire
& Rescue
Service in
partnership with
Hampshire
Constabulary

Dan Tasker,
Group Manager
Response, HFRS
&

Ch insp Rob
Mitchell,
Hampshire
Constabulary

51

Excess speed is a contributory factor
to serious injury incidents on our
roads. Enforcement and education to
tackle poor driver behaviour

The number of Police-led
Partnership initiatives to tackle
trafficspeeding issues with a

f enforcement and
éss raising for drivers.

Hampshire Constabulary Roads
Policing Team to support
volunteers with Community
Speedwatch training.

Speed enforcement initiatives
with use of visible camera van at
identified hotspots. Liaison
between Roads Policing Team
and Neighbourhood Team to
identify appropriate locations.

Road safety education can be
provided through Roads Policing
Force-wide initiatives by liaison
with Neighbourhood Policing
Teams and Hampshire Fire &
Rescue.

« [hReduction in the numbers of

KSI figures across the New
Forest

Strong reliance on the data
provided by Hampshire
Constabulary in order to
effectively baseline, monitor and
report on annual progress

poor driver behaviour, particularly in
relating to excess speeds.

The number of Police-led
partnership initiatives to tackle
traffic speeding issues with a
mixture of enforcement and
awareness raiding for drivers

Local Neighbourhood &
Prevention Teams to support
volunteers with Community
Speed Watch initiatives with use
of visible camera van at identified

55




€9 abed

Reducing
rural crime

Hampshire
Constabulary

Rob Mitchell,
District
Commander

6.1

Continue reduction in rural theft from
motor vehicles in beauty spot car
parks

-

hotspots to reduce animal injury
and death

in beauty spot
pw{a\red to previous

Allocation of resource from
Police, also requiring assistance
from NFDC and Forestry
Commission in relation to wider
awareness and crime prevention
messages. Visible policing
operations such as Operation
KOEMAN to provide reassurance
and prevention advice.

Operation BOTHERSOME which
utilises collaborative policing with
stakeholders within the
community.

Wider media strategy to deliver
reassurance to rural communities
through all areas of partnership
including most agencies working
within the New Forest.

56




APPENDIX B
GLOSSARY OF CRIME TYPES

Crime Types and Drug Offences
1 - VIOLENT CRIME

Violent crimes are those where the victim is intentionally stabbed, punched, kicked, pushed,
jostled, etc., or threatened with violence whether or not there is any injury.

In published crime statistics, violent crime —both as measured by the British Crime Survey (BCS)
and by recorded crime —is grouped into two broad, high-level.€ategories of violence with injury
and violence without injury. However, these categories are: rectly comparable between BCS
and recorded crime: for example, the BCS violence cate lude robbery, but the police
recorded crime violence categories do not {recorded.robbery figi re shown separately).

Just over half of all BCS V|olent mudents and j Ju der half of all pol corded violence against

recorded crime also includes attempt
these if no actual injury occurred.

. Violence without i

Police recorded crime stat Yo less serious violence, are particularly
affected by cticeloverti or the population and crime types it covers,

currently the only s
households.

BCS violence

BCS violent crime is categorised in two other ways: by offence type and according to the victim-
offender relationship. BCS offence types are as follows (estimates for wounding, assault with
minor injury, assault without injury and robbery add up to overall violence):

. Wounding: the incident results in severe or less serious injury, e.g. cuts, severe bruising,
chipped teeth, bruising or scratches requiring medical attention or any more serious injuries.

. Assault with minor injury: an incident where the victim was punched, kicked, pushed or
jostled and the incident resulted in minor injury to the victim, e.g. scratches or bruises.

57

Page 64



. Assault without injury: an incident (or attempt) where the victim was punched, kicked,
pushed or jostled but resulted in no injury.

. Robbery: an incident in which force or threat of force is used in a theft or attempted theft.
The categories of BCS violence according to the offender-victim relationship are as follows:

. Domestic violence comprises wounding and assaults which involves partners, ex- partners,
other relatives or household members.

J Stranger violence includes wounding and assaults in which the victim did not have any
information about the offender(s), or did not know and had never seen the offender(s) before.

pectrum, of assaults, from pushing and
Fven within the same offence classification, the

estimated to be reported to the police has
1981, but has been reasonably stable since 2002/03 (see

Local policing activity and p ies affect the levels of reported and recorded violent crime.
Where the police are proactive in addressing low-level violence and anti-social behaviour, this can
lead to more of these crimes being brought to their attention and being recorded. For example,
research by the Cardiff Violence Research Group showed an association between the introduction
of CCTV surveillance and increased police detection of violence (Sivarajasingam et al., 2003).

Police recorded crime data are subject to changes in police recording practices. The 1998 changes
to the Home Office Counting Rules had a very significant impact on the recording of violent and
sexual crime; the number of violence against the person offences recorded by the police increased
by 118 per cent as a result of the 1998 changes (Povey and Prime, 1999). Much of this increase
resulted from a widening of the offence coverage to include assaults with little or no physical
injury and offences of harassment (again with no injury).

58

Page 65



The National Crime Recording Standard (NCRS), introduced in April 2002, again resulted in
increased recording of violent and sexual crimes particularly for less serious offences, as well as for
some other offences. There was an estimated NCRS effect of 23 per cent on violence against the
person offences in the first 12 months of implementation, although it was recognised that this
effect was unlikely to be complete within the first 12 months (Simmons et al., 2003).

Audits undertaken by the Audit Commission on behalf of the Home Office indicate substantial
improvements in crime recording across forces in the two to three years following NCRS
introduction, which would particularly impact on violence against the person and result in
increases in recorded crimes for this category.

Incidents of violence against the person recorded by the police i
described below:

lude the following categories as

o Homicide including murder, manslaughter and infa

been apprehended and appears at court.

The Home Office receives two source:
England and Wales (including the Brit
England and Wales). These are:

continually updated and provides more detailed
e Index as a better source of data than the separate
eturn. However, due to the time permitted for police forces
thin 30 days of recording an incident as homicide) and the

is not possible to use the Homicide Index figures for the
annual crime bulletin. Inst Ffigures from the monthly aggregated recorded crime return are
presented as a provisional homicide estimate, with full analysis published in a supplementary
bulletin approximately six months’ later. Care should therefore be taken when using the
provisional figures for homicide as these are subject to change.

. Death by driving offences (includes by dangerous driving, careless or inconsiderate driving,
driving under the influence of drink or drugs and while being an unlicensed or uninsured driver).

L Corporate manslaughter where an organisation is deemed responsible for a person’s
death.

59

Page 66



. Grievous bodily harm {(GBH) includes injury resulting in permanent disability, more than
minor permanent disfigurement, broken bones, fractured skull, compound fractures, substantial
loss of blood, lengthy treatment or serious psychiatric injury (based on expert evidence).

GBH with intent occurs when there is clear evidence of a deliberate attempt to inflict serious
bodily harm regardless of level of injury sustained.

GBH without intent occurs when serious bodily harm results but there is no evidence of a
deliberate intent to inflict such an injury. Prior to April 2008, GBH without intent was not
separated out from a much broader category of less serious wounding that mostly consisted of
Actual Bodily Harm (ABH).

The definition of GBH with intent rests upon whether “the actio
deliberate attempt to inflict serious bodily harm”. The clarifi

of the offender clearly show a
N to the rules from

April 2008 makes this clear and that “the gravity of th
determining factor”. The rules were clarified as the
whether the degree of injury sustained, rather thal
in the recording of these offences (see Section

3stlting is not necessarily the
een some confusion as to

tent, should be the sole determining factor

J Actual Bodily Harm (ABH) relates to any assa
without intent) and includes internal inj
evidence).

. Threats to kill where an individual
carried out.

J Possession of ssion‘of firearms with intent, possession of
or point. If @weapon is used, then the police
. Possession of firearms with no intent

ces.

es are those where at the most a feeling of touch or passing
e victim.

The other violent offences d by the police include attempted murder, conspiracy to
murder, poisoning or female‘genital mutilation, cruelty or neglect to children, abandoning a child
under two years and child abduction.

Recorded crime statistics do not specifically identify offences of domestic violence since it is not a
legal definition. Such offences would be recorded in accordance with the intent of the offence and
any injuries sustained e.g. GBH with intent.

Police recorded crime figures for violence against the person quoted in the text and charts also
include assault on a constable and racially or religiously aggravated assault, which are both
separate categories within recorded crime. Such incidents are not freated separately in the BCS
and would fall within the BCS assault with minor injury or without injury categories.

60

Page 67



Sexual Offences

Due to the small numbers of sexual offences identified by face-to-face BCS interviews, results from
the main BCS are too unreliable to report; these data are not included within the overall count of
violence (except for the categories of serious wounding with sexual motive and other wounding
with sexual motive which are included in the offence type of wounding).

Respondents may not wish to disclose sensitive information face-to-face and so interviews since
2004/05 (and prior to this in 1996 and 2001) have included self-completion modules on intimate
violence (see Section 2.3). These figures have previously been published separately from the
annual volume (Mirrlees-Black, 1999; Walby and Allen, 2004; Finney, 2006; Coleman et al.,
2007; Povey et al., 2008, 2009; Smith et al., 2010). Headline figures are also presented in the
annual crime statistics bulletin for 2009/10.

Intimate violence is the collective term used to describ violence, sexual assault and

stalking and the categories are defined as follows:

nancial abus
former partner or

. Any domestic abuse: non-sexual emotional
sexual assault or stalking carried out by a curr

reats, physical force,
r family member.

. Partner abuse {non-sexual): non-sexual em
force by a current or former partner.

ats or physical

. Family abuse (non-sexual): n
physical force by a family member othe
other relative).

financial abuse, threats or
other, step- father/mother or

o} Emotional or f . i am having a fair share of
s or relatives or repeatedly belittled.

o} se to the statement 'frightened you by
0 ponse to the statement '‘pushed you, held you
o , bitten, choked, strangled, threatened with a

posure, sexual threats and unwanted touching (‘less serious’),
rape or assault by penetra uding attempts (‘serious’), by any person including a partner or

family member.

o Rape is the legal category of rape introduced in legislation in 2003. It is the penetration of
the vagina, anus or mouth by a penis without consent.

0 Assault by penetration is a legal offence introduced in 2003. It is the penetration of the
vagina or anus with an object or other body part without consent.

. Stalking: two or more incidents (causing distress, fear or alarm) of obscene or threatening
unwanted letters or phone calls, waiting or loitering around home or workplace, following or
watching, or interfering with or damaging personal property by any person including a partner or
family member.

61

Page 68



The police recorded crime category of most serious sexual crime encompasses rape, sexual
assault, and sexual activity with children. The Sexua! Offences Act 2003, introduced in May 2004,
altered the definitions of all three categories so comparisons around this time should be made
with caution

The group of other sexual offences recorded by the police covers unlawful sexual activity, mostly
involving consenting adults and is therefore particularly influenced by police activity in
investigating such crime. It includes among other offences, exploitation of prostitution and
soliciting, but not prostitution itself (which is not a notifiable offence). The Sexual Offences Act

2003, introduced in May 2004, introduced certain offences such as sexual grooming which is
included in this group. Offences of indecent exposure have been retrospectively reclassified to
sexual offences back to 2002/03 to aid comparisons over tim

2 ACQUISITIVE CRIME

onal crime where are stolen and can be

Burglary
Attempted burglary in a dwelling

Theft in a dwelling

Burglary

The BCS covers domestic burglary only, which is an unauthorised entry into the victim’s dwelling
but does not necessarily involve forced entry; it may be through an open window, or by entering
the property under false pretences (e.g. impersonating an official).

BCS domestic burglary does not cover theft by a person who is entitled to be in the dwelling at the
time of the offence; this is called theft in a dwelling and includes thefts committed inside a home
by someone who is entitled to be there e.g. party guests, workmen.

62

Page 69



The police record an offence of burglary if a person enters any building as a trespasser and with
intent to commit an offence of theft, GBH or unlawful damage. Aggravated burglary occurs when
the burglar is carrying a firearm, imitation firearm, offensive weapon or explosive.

Recorded crime figures are provided separately for burglaries that occur in domestic properties
and those which occur in commercial or other properties.

. Domestic burglaries include burglaries in all inhabited dwellings, including inhabited
caravans, houseboats and holiday homes, as well as sheds and garages connected to the main
dwelling (for example, by a connecting door).

. Non-domestic burglaries include burglaries to businesses (mcludmg hotels and similar
accommodation) and also some burglaries of sheds and outhou where these are not clearly
connected to the inhabited property.

An attempted burglary is recorded by the police a
offender made an actual, physical att

Used as a proxy for attempted burglary, though
where entry has been gained.

motor-scooters or mope

categories:
. Theft of vehicles where the vehicle is driven away illegally, whether or not it is recovered.
) Theft from vehicles refers to both theft of parts and accessories of motor vehicles and to

theft of contents.

. Attempted thefts of and from vehicles No distinction is made between attempted theft of
and attempted thefts from motor vehicles, as it is often very difficult to ascertain the offender’s
intention.

If parts or contents are stolen as well as the vehicle being moved, the incident is classified as theft
of a motor vehicle.

63

Page 70



The police recorded crime category of offences against vehicles covers private and commercial
vehicles (although does not distinguish between the two) and comprises:

. Thefts and attempted thefts of vehicles where the intent is to permanently deprive the
owner.
. Unauthorised taking of a vehicle where intent to permanently deprive the owner is not

evident — this would typically include ‘joyriding’ where the car is later recovered.

. Aggravated vehicle taking where a vehicle once taken is known to have been driven
dangerously, damaged or caused an accident.

. Thefts and attempted thefts from a vehicle targeting p ty in or on the vehicle.

. Interfering with a motor vehicle which includes atte
apparent intent to permanently deprive the owner. Thi
where there is evidence of intent to commit either
consent (TWOC), but there is either:

s to drive away without
includes recorded crime offences

(i) No evidence of intent to commit one o

(ii) There is evidence of intent to commit TWOC (TWOC i nce but, under the
provisions of the Criminal Attempts
offence).

Interfering with a motor vehicle offences ed i al crime statistics publication
are equivalent to the off y.r vehi erference and tampering’.
The BCS cannot sepa i : . s with the BCS it is included in the
attempted vehicle thet
even a nuisance.

The taking of / ing ro ‘ I ar-jacking’) is included within the robbery
offence o
-

Robbery

Arobberyisa
immediately prior
recorded robberies

orce or the threat of force is used either during or
pted theft. As with violence against the person, police

e of seriousness from armed bank robberies to muggings for
mobile phones or small of money. Recorded crime offences also distinguish between
robbery of personal property (personal robbery) and business property (business robbery).
Robbery of business property is a recorded crime classification where goods stolen belong to a
business or other corporate body (such as a bank or a shop), regardless of the location of the
robbery. The taking of vehicles during robberies (often termed car-jacking) is also included as
robbery. Supplementary data on this offence have been collected in a supplementary collection by
the Home Office since 2007/08.

The BCS covers robberies against adults resident in households; these are included in the violent
crime count.

64

Page 71




Theft

Theft from the person covers theft (including attempts) of a handbag, wallet, cash etc. directly
from the victim, but without the use of physical force against the victim, or the threat of it. This
BCS category breaks into two components:

. Snatch theft where there may be an element of force involved but this is just enough to
snatch the property away; and

. Stealth theft where no force is used and the victim is unaware of the incident (pick-
pocketing). Stealth theft makes up the larger share (over 80%) of the total.

For recorded crime, theft from the person offences are those
force. Stealth theft is included as part of this recorded crime ¢
identified from snatch theft.

there is no use of threat or
ry and cannot be separately

Other theft of personal property covers thefts awa
was no direct contact between the offender and vi

the items when they are stolen (i.e. thefts of ugr)g

.

here no force is used, there
not holding or carrying

uded in offences against
cles, shoplifting and other theft

. Burglary; if anyt
the household’s dwelling.

s stolen, or an attempt was made to steal something else, from

. Theft from a dwelling; when a bicycle is stolen from inside a house by someone who was
not trespassing.

. Theft from a vehicle; if the bicycle is one of a number of things stolen.

3 VANDALISM AND CRIMINAL DAMAGE

In the BCS, criminal damage is referred to as vandalism and is defined as the intentional and
malicious damage to either the home, other property and vehicles. Vandalism shown in the BCS

65

Page 72




ranges from arson to graffiti. Cases where there is nuisance only {e.g. letting down car tyres) or
where the damage is accidental are not included. Where vandalism occurs in combination with
burglary or robbery, the burglary or robbery codes take precedence over the damage codes in
offence coding.

The BCS produces estimates both for vandalism to the home and other property and against
vehicles. Vandalism to the home and other property involves intentional or malicious damage to
doors, windows, fences, plants and shrubs, for example. Vandalism to other property also includes
arson where there is any deliberate damage to property belonging to the respondent or their
household (including vehicles) caused by fire.

The BCS defines vandalism of vehicles as any intentional and ma
scratching a coin down the side of a car or denting a car roof
deliberate damage to a car by fire. These incidents are recor:
in vandalism to other property. The BCS only covers van

ious damage to a vehicle such as
es not, however, include causing
s arson and, therefore, included
gainst private households; that is,
hich count as belonging to
the offence classification of

being reckless as to whether any suc
repairable without cost, or which is a
Separate recorded crime figures exist f
dwellmg, to a vehicle and ot

amage which is
in police recorded crime statistics.

ildings and vehicles. In the BCS
:to the respondent or their household caused

this is any deliberate dam:
by fire, regardl

scorded by the police and in the BCS. If there is

with the theft committed the arson, then an offence of
ition to the theft. For the BCS, only an offence of theft of a
ctice it would often not be possible to establish that the arson
onnected with the theft.

vehicle would be record
was committed by someon

4 FRAUD AND FORGERY

The measurement of fraud is challenging as fraud is known to be very substantially under-
reported to the police. Better information can be derived from other sources. For example, figures
for plastic (credit, debit or bank) card fraud are obtained from The UK Cards Association, which is
the leading trade association for the cards industry in the UK. For more information on the various
sources of fraud including administrative data and on the nature, extent and economic impact of
fraud in the UK, see Hoare (2007), Levi et al. (2007) and Wilson et al. (2006).

66

Page 73




Plastic card fraud among individuals resident in households in England and Wales is also covered in
a module within the BCS. Stolen plastic cards (i.e. credit, debit or bank cards) are included in the
main BCS crime count under the relevant offence, such as burglary or theft from the person, but
incidents of fraud are not covered. However, the BCS has included gquestions on experience of
plastic card fraud in a separate module of questions since 2005/06.

Offences of fraud and forgery are recorded by the police, but figures from 2007/08 onwards are
not comparable with previous years due to the introduction of the Fraud Act 2006, which
commenced in January 2007 and saw significant changes to offences in the fraud and forgery
offence group.

For offences prior to January 2007, fraud is defined as dishonestly deceiving to obtain either
property or a pecuniary advantage. Recorded crime statistics ollected for: fraud by
company director; false accounting; cheque and credit card:f ; other frauds; bankruptcy and
insolvency offences; forgery or use of false drug prescri r forgery and vehicle/driver
document fraud.

Under the Fraud Act 2006, fraud is defined as dj i epresentation to obtain

v gffences; fo
U

an account is defraudg”
transaction on each ac

several police forces) an the fact that in the cases when this counting basis is used, the
financial loss is generally b by the financial institution at which the account is held rather than
by the merchants who process a transaction or by the account holder.

From April 2007, where a financial institution makes full financial recompense to an account
holder, the financial institution (rather than the account holder) can report the crime directly to a
single point of contact within the police.

These changes have been supported by The UK Cards Association and ACPO as they have resulted
in significant reductions in bureaucracy in relation to the reporting of chegue and plastic card
fraud. This has focused police effort on reports of fraud most likely to lead to a suspect being
brought to justice and also introduced single points of contact within police forces for the financial
institutions to report cases directly to. As victims of fraud are mainly commercial organisations, it
is not covered in the same way as other crimes. The government’s Fraud Review (2006) also

67

Page 74




specifically welcomed the changes that were being put in place:
http://www.aasbni.gov.uk/pubs/FCl/fraudreview_finalreport.pdf

The 2006 Fraud Act also resulted in the creation of a National Fraud Authority (NFA). One of the
key objectives of this new body is to support better reporting of fraud crimes and their subsequent
investigation. During 2009/10 the NFA opened a single national point of reporting for a wide range
of frauds, in particular those arising from the growing use of the internet and email. This new
means of reporting sits outside the police service as a call centre (Action Fraud) with an associated
online reporting tool. At the same time the police have established a National Fraud Intelligence
Bureau (NFIB) to receive reports from Action Fraud as well as those from the banks and other
financial institutions and to analyse them to identify positive investigatory opportunities which will
then be referred to individual forces to follow up. The creation of these new bodies has had little
or no impact on police recorded crime data for 2009/10 as th commenced operation in
early 2010.

5 RACIALLY OR RELIGIOUSLY AGGRAVATED OFFENCES

Used in recorded crime, racially aggravated offej i nder section 28 of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998. The Anti-terrori
the religiously aggravated aspect. Racially and re
together in police recorded crime and cannot be se
whether they thought the incident w% i
the incident was religiously motivated:

6 DRUG OFFENCES

Recorded crime figure
publication. With effect’
warnings for i

s a separate National Statistics bulletin on Drug Seizures for
made by the police, HM Revenue and Customs, and the UK

England and Wales,
Border Agency.

68

Page 75




This page is intentionally left blank



safer new forest

Safer New Forest Partnership Plan 2017/18

‘THE NEW FOREST IS ONE OF THE SAFEST PLACES IN THE UK TO LIVE IN, WORK IN AND VISIT. THE
SAFER NEW FOREST PARTNERSHIP IS WORKING TO MAKE IT EVEN SAFER’

Page 77



CONTENTS

Page

2 PRIORITIES s:sssuessssonssossusessuninssasssis srevtsss 5555563 55645 50 555 s50sne sasnonsssaneras ssssenssnssasasss 3

APPENDIX 1 ACTION PLAN :cssesossussasmssissssnssssussssssasmssess simsisnsnsnssoasnsaisnssssvassavsassass sovssssesnin 6

Page 78



1

11

1.2

13

1.4

INTRODUCTION

The Safer New Forest Partnership (‘the Partnership’) is required by law to make an
annual Partnership Plan to set out a strategy for the reduction of re-offending and
crime and disorder and combating substance misuse for the New Forest area.

This strategy will be implemented through an action plan (Appendix 1) devised by the
Partnership to address key crime and disorder priorities for the area.

The Partnership Plan draws upon evidence contained within and is informed by the
Safer New Forest Strategic Assessment 2016, which was approved in January 2016.
That document provides a detailed analysis of crime in the New Forest area. The
priorities included in this Plan have been identified following an examination of the
Strategic Assessment.

The Partnership Plan (and associated action plan) will run from 1 April 2017 to 31
March 2018 and will be reviewed regularly by the Partnership during this time.

2 PRIORITIES

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

The Partnership has identified the following priorities:

1. Tackle the cause and effects of anti-social behaviour

2. Tackle the causal effects of offending behaviour and reoffending with a focus on
violent crime.

3. Continue to support the Partnership and the community in preventing arson-
related incidents.

4. Support victims of domestic abuse.
5. Promote road safety with an emphasis on killed and serious injury (KSI)
6. Reducing rural crime

For each priority a lead Partner(s) has been agreed by the Partnership. The lead
partner has identified, in consultation with the Partnership, the actions which will be
taken throughout the year to address the relevant priority, how the success of those
actions will be measured and what resources will be required. This is set out in the
Partnership’s action plan.

Each lead partner will be responsible for developing more detailed targets and a
strategy for the delivery of the actions throughout the year.

The progress that each lead partner is making on the action plan will be monitored by
the Partnership throughout the year.

Page 79



2.6

This Partnership Plan (including the action plan) is a living document and may be
amended over the course of the year to reflect the ongoing work addressing the
priorities.

3 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

The Partnership is required to make arrangements for engagement with the local
community.

The Partnership considers that the views of people and organisations living and
working in the New Forest area are a vital source of information to assist with the
delivery of its Partnership Plan. In particular, the Partnership has sought, and will
continue to seek, to obtain views on the levels and patterns of re-offending, crime and
disorder and substance misuse in the area and on the priorities for the Partnership in
the future. In addition, the Partnership is always open to hearing of any ways local
people feel they might be able to assist with reducing re-offending, crime and disorder
and substance misuse in the area.

In order to achieve improved community engagement, the Partnership has
established formal links with the New Forest District Association of Local Councils.

The Association currently meets four times per year and representatives of the
Partnership have been invited to address two of those meetings each year to ascertain
the views of local representatives on crime and disorder concerns and priorities in
their areas. Representatives of the local councils were invited to attend the
September meeting of the Partnership to bring forward information and concerns. In
addition to providing valuable input into decision-making on priorities for the coming
year, the Partnership found the opportunity to engage with local community leaders
extremely useful in the wider context of crime and fear of crime.

The Partnership also has a website which can be accessed by members of the
public. http://www.safer.newforest.gov.uk/15868 .

Members of the public who wish to provide comments on the Partnership Plan
generally, wish the Partnership to consider their views on patterns and levels of
reoffending, crime and disorder and substance misuse in the New Forest area, or
consider that they may be able to assist with the delivery of this Partnership Plan, may
contact the Partnership in the following ways:

By emailing: safernewforest@nfdc.gov.uk

By telephoning: 02380 285438

Or writing to: Safer New Forest, New Forest District Council, Appletree Court,
Beaulieu Road, Lyndhurst, SO43 7PA.

Page 80



4 PUBLISHING

4.1 Both the Safer New Forest Strategic Assessment 2016 and this Safer New Forest
Partnership Plan 2017/2018 will be published on the Safer New Forest website.

Page 81



28 obed

APPENDIX 1

Safer New Forest Partnership Plan 2017/2018 — Action Plan

Priority area

~ Lead Partner
and Contact

Action

Measurement of Action

Resource Allocation
Lead Partners to Allocate

Tackle the
cause and
effects of
anti-social
behaviour

New Forest
District Council
in partnership
with
Hampshire
Constabulary

Brian Byrne,
Partnership
Intervention
Manager

&

Chief Inspector
Rob Mitchell

1.1

Joint work with Policing partners,
Youth Offending Team and Probation
in identifying perpetrators of ASB.
This will be achieved through clinics
across the forest identifying
perpetrators and utilising current
processes to engage individuals.
1-2-1 work with perpetrators of ASB
to identify the causal effects of
negative behaviour and implement
prevention plans to deter further
behaviour.

Through positive engagement
with support services and
reduction in overall number of
reported ASB incidents.

Measurable reduction or
cessation in negative
behaviour resulting in victim
satisfaction and increased
confidence. This will be
quantified through the
measurement of reported
cases and incidents of ASB.

NFDC Community Safety Team to
oversee and support with
Supporting Families Programme
and its partners through positive
divertive actions or punitive
measurements where
appropriate.

Partnership Interventions Panel
to formulate action plans and
implement risk assessment when
dealing with perpetrators of ASB
with a focus on victim impact.

Utilise the Restorative Justice
Programme as a means of
deterring perpetrators of ASB and
providing reparation work to
make good any harm.




€8 abed

Priority area

Leéanart\yner ‘

and Contact |

Action

Measurement of Action

Resource Allocation
Lead Partners to Allocate

1.2 | Plan seasonal events with partners to | Seek to minimise the effects of | NFDC Community Safety Team
ensure appropriate resources and pre | negative behaviour towards and Hampshire Police with core
planning are in place for major events. | communities and victims of partners to devise plan and direct

ASB. resources where required to
Safety Advisory Group and Licensing known seasonal events such as
Team to notify the NFDC Community Halloween, Mid-Term educational
Safety Team of known events that breaks and major sporting events.
may have an impact on the
community. This will provide a more
holistic approach to the prevention
and effects of ASB and impact on the
communities.

1.3 | ASB awareness programmes with Seek an overall recorded Joint working with Schools, Youth
educational establishments and youth | number of reported ASB and Centres, Youth Offending Team
facilities on the effects of ASB both on | 1° time entrants into the and the Children and Young
perpetrators and victims. criminal justice system by Persons Alliance.

perpetrators. Utilising the Safedme Schools
educational package for delivery.
Tackle the Hampshire 2.1 | Develop a working strategy with local | Seek to minimise the harm to | Continue with ongoing

causal effects
of offending
behaviour
and
reoffending
with a focus

Constabulary in
partnership with
Interchange/

CRC

Chief Inspector

Mental Health care services around
reducing violence towards staff and
other patients within residential

mental health units in the New Forest.

others from assaults with and
without injury in mental health
units. One measure would be
to see a reduction of reports
compared to the previous 12
months.

partnership work with Southern
Health NHS Foundation Trust.
Continued partnership work with
The Bluebird Unit involving
information sharing and accurate
recording of risks.




8 abed

Priority area

Lead Partner

and Contact

Action

k Measurement of Action

Resource Allocation
Lead Partners to Allocate

on violent
crime

Rob Mitchell
&

Dean Hatton,
Interchange

Manager

Implement and review action
plans and threat assessments
with partners.

2.2

Continue to seek to reduce domestic

abuse through partnership work.

(This has been carried over from the

2016/17 Action Plan)

Reduction in number of DV
assaults as proportion to
overall assaults.

DV perpetrators subject to
court orders/licences given the
appropriate level of
intervention and/or treatment

Partnership work with
stakeholders to identify those at
risk.

Identify perpetrators through
partnership information and
manage the risk posed.

Prevention work through use of
Domestic Violence Prevention
Notices and formal police
outcomes.

Intervention with perpetrators
whilst in police custody (Op Cara)
when in custody.

Neighbourhood Officers to work
closely with partnership
processes (MARAC/MASH) where
local knowledge will allow
engagement and problem solving.




Gg abed

Priority area

Lead Partner
and Contact

Action

Measurement of Action

Resource Allocation
Lead Partners to Allocate

2.3 | Improved engagement within schools | Reduction in levels of youth on
to address Youth on Youth violence youth related violence
issues. compared to previous 12
months
2.4 | Ensure that offenders subject to Court | Reduction in offending and

Orders and Licences ae given access
to the appropriate rehabilitative

activities and that, where necessary,
correct enforcement action is taken

harm

Support the delivery of Safe4Me
schools programme by partners,
joint work with schools across
District including supporting
education around knife and
weapon use.

Wider work with Supporting
Families group and domestic
abuse priority to address wider
DV issues in the District which can
form violence issues for young
people.

CRC offenders to complete
Orders successfully in 75% of
cases.

Reach action to be taken within 8
days of the unacceptable
absence.

CRC Manager to liaise with local
police to share information and
agree to joint actions to reduce
risks of further offending.




98 abed

Priority area

Lead Partner
and Contact

Action

Measurement of Action

Resource Allocation
Lead Partners to Allocate

Use of assessments of offenders’
needs to make appropriate local
referrals.

Evidence of delivery to accredited
programmes such as Building
Better Relationships and Thinking
Skills Programme.

Close working relationships with
the local drug treatment agency.

Continue to
support the
partnership
and
community in
preventing
arson related
incidents

Hampshire Fire
and Rescue
Service

Dan Tasker
Group Manager
Response

3.1 | Continue to lead the New Forest Reduction in number of arson-
Arson Reduction Forum towards related incidents across the
proactively identifying and positively New Forest
addressing all potential/ongoing
problems associated with deliberate
fire-setting activity

3.2 | Reintroduce and drive a multi-agency | Increased numbers of

approach to arson prevention through

increased use of the Environmental
Visual Audit (EVA) process, mobile

CCTV and Exchange of Information

(EOI)

completed EVA and EOI.
Increased use of mobile CCTV
units to identify repeat
offenders

All of this essential work will be
centrally driven through the
continued vision of the Strategic
Partnership; albeit actively co-
ordinated and locally delivered
through the excellent work of the
multi-agency “Arson Reduction
Forum”, chaired by HFRS.
Information exchange and “Task
Force” delivery will be greatly
supported and better facilitated
by the co-location of the two
Police/Fire Stations in the East
and West of the New Forest.

10




/8 abed

Priority area

Lead Partner
and Contact

Action

Measurement of Action

Resource Allocation
Lead Partners to Allocate

3.3 | Introduce a more multi-agency “Task | Reduction in arson-related Wider, more effective use of
Force” based approach in tackling incidents. SafetyNet will also support this
high-risk problematic issues both Increased level of information sharing.
quickly and effectively (e.g. fly- detection/conviction for
tipping) repeat offenders
Support New Forest 4.1 | Continue to develop a positive Increase in access to support NFDC Community Safety Team,
victims of District Council awareness campaign for You First, the | services. with NFDC funds.
domestic (in consultation commissioned service for victims of
abuse with the Domestic Abuse.
Domestic Abuse Alternating advertising campaign,
Forum as both digital and print for improved
necessary) awareness.
Brian Byrne, 4.2 | Upskill Council Housing staff on the Earlier identification and NFDC Community Safety Team
Partnership use of screening tools for identifying reduction in missed with You First.
Intervention victims of Domestic Abuse and sign opportunities for supporting
Manager posting them to support services. victims of Domestic Abuse.
Increased confidence in
alerting services to adults and
children at risk of Domestic
Abuse.
4.3 | Identify areas of need, emerging Greater service access to both | NFDC Community Safety Team

issues and training through the
Domestic Abuse Forum and assist in

professionals and victims of
Domestic Abuse.

though permanent participation
at the Domestic Abuse forum.

11




88 abed

Priority area

Lead Partner
and Contact

Action

Measurement of Action

Resource Allocation
Lead Partners to Allocate

implementing positive action where
available.

4.4 | Enabling victims of Domestic Abuse Increase in cohort size for Supporting Families Programme,
and families to access the Supporting | families with recorded both local and intensive services.
Families Programme for positive Domestic Abuse. Access to the Supporting Families
interventions and safe planning for budget and the strategic
the future. community safety grant
This will provide greater opportunities
for support of children witnessing the
effects of Domestic Abuse.
Promote Hampshire Fire | 5.1 | Excess speed is a contributory factor The number of Police-led Hampshire Constabulary Roads
road safety & Rescue to serious injury incidents on our Partnership initiatives to tackle | Policing Team to support
with an Service in roads. Enforcement and education to | traffic speeding issues with a volunteers with Community
emphasis on | partnership with tackle poor driver behaviour mixture of enforcement and Speedwatch training.
Killed & Hampshire awareness raising for drivers.

Serious Injury
(KSI)

Constabulary

Dan Tasker,
Group Manager
Response, HFRS
&

Ch Insp Rob
Mitchell,

Speed enforcement initiatives
with use of visible camera van at
identified hotspots. Liaison
between Roads Policing Team
and Neighbourhood Team to
identify appropriate locations.

Road safety education can be

12




68 abed

Priority area

Lead ,Pé rtner

and Contact |

Action

 Measurement of Action |

Resource Allocation
Lead Partners to Allocate

Hampshire
Constabulary

provided through Roads Policing
Force-wide initiatives by liaison
with Neighbourhood Policing
Teams and Hampshire Fire &
Rescue.

5.2 | Continue to support Hampshire Reduction in the numbers of Strong reliance on the data
Constabulary and the Community KSI figures across the New provided by Hampshire
Safety Partnership in order to deliver | Forest Constabulary in order to
a range of educational programmes effectively baseline, monitor and
and prevention activities report on annual progress

5.3 | Work to reduce animal injury and The number of Police-led Local Neighbourhood &

death on New Forest roads by
enforcement and education to tackle
poor driver behaviour, particularly in
relating to excess speeds.

partnership initiatives to tackle
traffic speeding issues with a
mixture of enforcement and
awareness raiding for drivers

Prevention Teams to support
volunteers with Community
Speed Watch initiatives with use
of visible camera van at identified
hotspots to reduce animal injury
and death

13




06 dbed

Priority area

Lead Paftnér ~V
‘and Contact

Action

. Measurement of Action

~ Resource Allocation
Lead Partners to Allocate

Reducing
rural crime

Hampshire
Constabulary

Rob Mitchell,
District
Commander

6.1 | Continue reduction in rural theft from | Reduction in beauty spot
motor vehicles in beauty spot car TFMV compared to previous
parks 12 months.

6.2 | Deliver a monthly themed operation Data and feedback from

to tackle seasonal rural crime —
Operation FALCON

individual operations

Allocation of resource from
Police, also requiring assistance
from NFDC and Forestry
Commission in relation to wider
awareness and crime prevention
messages. Visible policing
operations such as Operation
KOEMAN to provide reassurance
and prevention advice.

Operation BOTHERSOME which
utilises collaborative policing with
stakeholders within the
community.

Wider media strategy to deliver
reassurance to rural communities
through all areas of partnership
including most agencies working
within the New Forest.

14




Agenda Iltem 6

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL: 16 JANUARY 2018

COMMUNITY GRANTS TASK & FINISH GROUP

1. BACKGROUND

1.1  The Panel at its meeting on 17 January 2017 recommended to the Cabinet a revised
Community Grants Eligibility Criteria which was approved by the Cabinet on 7
February 2017. The new criteria set robust parameters in which local voluntary and
community aided groups could apply to the Council for grant aid. A process for
assessing the applications, namely via interviews with the Task & Finish Group was
also devised. This approach has been used for determining the applications received
during the application stage (August — October 2017) for inclusion in the 2018/19
Council budget.

1.2 On 8 and 18 December the Community Grants Task and Finish Group re-convened
to examine the Community Grant applications received for the 2018/2019 financial
year. In total, twenty-three applications were received. Seventeen applicants were
invited to give a presentation to the Task & Finish Group. Three applicants did not
meet the Council’s adopted eligibility criteria for varying reasons.

1.3 The Task & Finish Group comprised Clirs Mrs Cerasoli, Davies, Penman and White
with input from key Council Officers.

2. PROCESS

2.1  As part of their interview, all grant Applicants were asked to evidence their accounts,
business case and how their request would meet the needs of, and benefit, residents
in the District. Applicants were also asked to explain how their funding request linked
to the priorities set out in the Council’'s Corporate Plan.

2.2 Following the presentations, the Task & Finish Group fully discussed and reviewed
the information submitted with the applications and presented at interview. In
formulating a recommendation for each grant request, members referred to the
agreed criteria, the Council’'s Corporate Plan priorities, and the value for money being
offered. Whilst there was an increase in the number of applications this year (23 up
from 17), a number of these did not meet the Council's grant criteria or fit in with the
Council’s corporate plan objectives.

2.3 The recommendations, with reasons, determining each of the grant requests, is set
out in Appendix 1.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 All requests will be considered by the Cabinet in February as part of the budget
setting process. The total amount to be awarded, should the Cabinet approve the
recommendations set out in Appendix 1, is £218,020. The total amount of awards
granted last year was £452,000 (minus the grant given to Citizens Advice Bureau
(£197,000)).

Page 91



4, COMMUNITY GRANT APPLICATIONS: SUMMARY

4.1 Summary of Applications Received

ITEM APPLICANT RECOMMENDATION
A CODA £2,500
B Yellow Door £5,000
C NF Disability Information Service £10,000
D hArt £6,000
E Forest Arts £17,000
F Forest Forge £28,000
G Turn Up for Fun £0
H Youth & Family Matters £4,740
I SPUD £0
J Handy Trust £3,740
K Family Matters £3,000
L Copythorne Play Area £23,000
M Fawley Rugby Club £28,600
N Hythe Sea Scouts £0
O Marchwood Girl Guides £20,000
P Totton & Eling Tennis Club £6,500
Q SPUD (Capital Grant) £0
R Sway Village Hall (Revenue Grant) £2,440
S Totton Time Bank £0
T Community First New Forest (a) Operating £40,000

Costs
Community First New Forest (b) Health £2,500
Walks
Community First New Forest (c) Nightstop £15,000
Total £218,020

4.2 Applications were also received from the following organisations: -

a) Lymington Community Association — funding request for £100k to support the

b)

c)

development of a pottery shed and upgrade the facilities to enable the
community centre to attract corporate events and civil ceremonies.

Ringwood Social Club — funding request of £125,000 to support the

renovation of the social club.

Sway Village Hall — funding request of £450,000 to fund the re-development
of the village hall which accounted for 100% of the total project costs.

The Task & Finish Group recommends that the grant applications from these three
organisations not be supported as this time.

Page 92




5. FUTURE GRANT APPLICATIONS

5.1 The Community Grant Task & Finish Group is a standing Group of the Panel and will
meet annually every November/December to determine applications received for the
forthcoming financial year. The Task & Finish Group will be guided by the Council's
projected financial position in determining the level of awards granted.

6. RECOMMENDATION

6.1 That the grant awards as set out in Appendix 1 be recommended to the Cabinet for
approval and inclusion in the Medium Term Financial Plan.

Further information: Background Papers:
Grant application forms

Colin Read

Executive Head of Operations

Tel: 02380 285588

colin.read@nfdc.gov.uk

Jamie Burton

Physical Activity & Partnerships Manager
Tel: 02380 285588
[amie.burton@nfdc.gov.uk

Page 93


mailto:colin.read@nfdc.gov.uk
mailto:jamie.burton@nfdc.gov.uk

Appendix 1

A | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:
CODA Annual operating costs, providing music for
health and wellbeing purposes.

TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDATION
£298,750 £296,250 £2,500
SUMMARY:

CODA is an independent music trust, which is developing its links with local schools and
community groups. There have been successful projects in the New Milton area and the
application seeks to ensure that further project work can be undertaken, with aim to facilitate
creative music making for all ages and sectors of the community through high quality
participatory music programmes, workshops and projects. The funding would support
particular work with children and young people.

RECOMMENDATION: That the funding request (the same as the level of award granted last
year) namely £2,500 be supported.

REASON: The Council will continue to support this organisation at the same funding level as

previous years. The organisation primarily services the residents of a portion of the district
given its geographical location.

Page 94



B | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:

Yellow Door To support the costs of support, outreach and
education sessions

TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDATION
£1,003,257 £931,343 £5,000
SUMMARY:

Yellow Door provides a range integrated specialist services to those who are at risk of or
who have been affected by unwanted Sexual Experience or Domestic Abuse (DSA). This
may include anything from rape, childhood sexual abuse, sexual assault to harassment,
coercion or domestic abuse. The group covers the New Forest, Southampton and Eastleigh
areas.

RECOMMENDATION: That the funding request of £5,000 be supported.

REASON: This organisation offers specialist sexual and domestic services to vulnerable
residents within the District with the aim of ending sexual, domestic violence and abuse. The
demand for this service, for New Forest residents has increased by 40% in the last year
alone. This organisation offers value for money as this specialist service could not be
provided by the Council.

Page 95



C | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:
New Forest Disability Information Annual operating costs
Service Advice to individuals and organisations
TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDAITON
£86,750 £57,500 £10,000
SUMMARY:

The Service provides advice and information on disability issues with an emphasis on
empowering individuals. With the consistent stream of changes to benefits and support
arrangements for disabled people, demands on the Service are considerable.

RECOMMENDATION: That the funding request of £12,000 not be supported as this would
be an increase in previous years grant awards and the Task & Finish Group were also aware
that this organisation had received other funding from the Council. As such a grant award of
£10,000 be supported.

REASON: This organisation offers vulnerable residents in the New Forest specialist advice
which the Council does not currently have the resource to provide. The Council’s benefit
officers often refer individuals to this service for specialist advice, which is provided free of
charge to the client.

Page 96



D | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:

hArt To support the generic running costs and to
deliver some targeted project work.

TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDATION
£46,000 £36,000 £6,000
SUMMARY:

hArt are an art therapy charity that looks to provide support for the mental health needs of
people of all ages and abilities. They organise workshops and projects across a range of
artistic mediums, in the more remote areas of Hampshire (primarily the New Forest) where
limited access to services and opportunities for social contact add to the increase in mental
health issues by making loneliness and isolation a factor.

RECOMMENDATION: That the funding request of £10,000 not be recommended but that an
award of £6,000 (the same as last year) be supported.

REASON: This is a relatively new organisation, and despite making significant progress in
the growth of programmes provided and service users as well as establishing good
partnership links, the organisation needs to expand to reach a wider audience within the
New Forest. However, the Group felt that the programmes provided last year, made good
use of the grant monies awarded in seeking to reach out to the most vulnerable residents,
particularly elderly residents in the District.

Page 97



E | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:

Forest Arts Centre Annual operating cost
Arts Centre and outreach activities

TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDATION
£267,847 £250,847 £17,000
SUMMARY:

Forest Arts Centre provides a leading venue for live arts events and has an extensive
outreach programme. The Centre is operated by Hampshire Cultural Trust. The backing of
the Trust has brought about new projects and opportunities, and the centre programming
has led to an increase of throughput and continues to be well supported.

Targeted work through regular session such as SCARF (Supporting Special Children and
their Relatives and Friends) are very well established and project work, for example with
young people around drug education; adults with learning disabilities, work with older people
tackling issues such as dementia and social isolation through the Better Life Chance team,
and with young people in deprived areas of the district, have produced excellent outcomes.

RECOMMENDATION: That the funding request of £17,000 be supported.

REASON: This organisation offers value for money through the numerous and extensive
community based projects across the Forest particularly aimed at young people and hard to
reach groups. In the last year, under new leadership, the organisation has made strong links
with local clinical commissioning groups to offer outreach work to a wider audience within the
community and has expanded programmes to tackle social issues such as social isolation.

Page 98



F | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:

Forest Forge Theatre Company | Annual operating costs, Touring
professional theatre and creative learning

TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDATION
£142,772 £110,772 £28,000
SUMMARY:

Forest Forge has undergone a fundamental re-structure with the intention of providing
creative learning and outreach activities at its core, whilst reflecting the changing funding
climate. There is still professional touring theatre to communities across the New Forest but
the emphasis is clearly on creative learning.

This organisation targets local residents to encourage participation in a variety of activities
such as workshops; work experience and targeted outreach projects (e.g. the
Gypsy/Roma/Traveller community). The Youth Theatre is based in Ringwood and is very
popular. The Company has a particular reputation for the quality of its work with those with
additional needs and provides opportunities for older people to tackle social isolation and
improve cross-generational understanding.

RECOMMENDATION: That the funding request for £32,000 not be supported, but that an
award of £28,000 be granted.

REASON: The organisation offers value for money through its diverse and wide ranging
community outreach projects which benefit the wellbeing of many young people and families
across the whole of the District. However, with continuing constraints on budgets, the Group
recommends a slight reduction in the grant award, due to the fact that this is by far the
highest grant award that was given to an arts organisation by the District Council.

Page 99



G | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:

Turn Up For Fun To run summer play provision in the North
West of the district.

TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDATION
£8,000 £6,500 £0
SUMMARY:

TUFF is a community organisation with a constitution and three Trustees. They provide low
cost, open access play sessions — including arts, craft and physical activities. Sessions are
generally run during school holidays, but they also run after school sessions and festivals.
They are applying for a grant as they strongly believe in the value and importance of free or
very low cost community play, open to all ages. They often hear from parents and carers
how hard it is to find activities for children and young people which are accessible to all,
without the worry of expense, which also means that they can bring the whole family. TUFF
would like to increase the number of sessions to meet increased demand and need,
particularly, but not exclusively, in the summer holidays. The organisation has approached
all parish and town council’s for funding support however with small restricted budgets their
contributions do not cover the full cost of provision. TUFF have explored wider funding
support, as well as undertaking fundraising and accepting donations from various sources.

RECOMMENDATION: That the application for £6,500 not be granted.
REASON: The Applicant did not make it clear what precisely the grant award would be used
for and where in the Forest the service would be provided. Given the localities and amount

requested it was suggested that the organization contact the local Councillors who may be
able to support the programme.

Page 100



H | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:

Youth & Families Matter | To support the delivery of YFM as their focus has
increasingly come upon tackling bigger community-
based issues and working with individuals whose
needs weren't typically covered by our Youth and
Family Work programmes. Whilst this is a natural
path for our work to expand and to maximise the
benefit of the established best practices, systems
and resources within YFM, we need to attract
additional support to help this new Community
Development programme succeed and translate
projects into meaningful outcomes for beneficiaries.

TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDATION
£161,935 £157,195 £4,740
SUMMARY:

Youth and Families Matter (YFM) is a small registered charity that works from the heart of
the community in Totton to improve the health and wellbeing of children, young people and
families whose lives are impacted by many forms of disadvantage, mental iliness, serious
illness, addiction or abuse. The application aims to support three projects that will assist the
wellbeing of isolated, vulnerable and disadvantaged people under a new categorisation of
Community Development work, namely: -

1. Community Breakfast (targeting social deprivation)

2. Refresh (targeting social deprivation)

3. TIDES (targeting depression and anxiety)
RECOMMENDATION: That the grant application for £4,740 be supported.
REASON: The organisation provides schemes that the Council would otherwise

commission, to support vulnerable residents in the Community. Officers will hold quarterly
meetings with this organization to review progress.

Page 101



I APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:

SPUD This revenue grant will make a significant contribution, in
partnership with the corporate sponsorship, to expand the
role of our administrator/fundraiser and cover overheads.

TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDATION
£500,500 £494,500 £0

SUMMARY: The applicant currently does not receive any core funding, meaning all of the
overheads and staff costs have to be derived solely from project activity. This puts
considerable pressure on the organisation and makes developing new projects, exploring
funding opportunities and taking a more active role in external networks and opportunities
difficult. Some of the overhead costs (including part-time admin support of one day per
week) have been met through corporate sponsorship. The organisation is putting in place
strategies to move away from its current funding position, to develop a long-term,
sustainable future. These strategies include deriving a rental income from some of their
major capital projects.

These strategies will commence the latter part of 2018. In the meantime, SPUD requests
support to ensure their continued viability and be able to explore a range of opportunities —
both projects and funding. SPUD’s two co-directors are solely reliant on project funding. This
revenue grant, in partnership with the corporate sponsorship, will assist to cover overheads
and expand the role of the administrator and fundraiser. This additional admin support will be
absolutely key next year, as both co-directors will be very focused on the re-development of
ArtSway.

RECOMMENDATION: That the grant request of £6,000 be refused.

REASON: Members did not feel it appropriate to fund a request to support an admin role,
not having any tangible benefits to residents of the District.

Page 102




J | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:

Handy Trust They are applying for a grant to run their school
holiday project that is not already funded and we
need to obtain funding for 10 weeks

TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDATION
£74,790 £71,050 £3,740
SUMMARY:

The Handy Trust is a youth provision for children & young people aged 0 — 25 years old.
They work with the whole community a 24/7 service at home, in school and in the
community. Due to the economic climate they are working with children and young people
from families who are experiencing poverty and hardship and this sometimes includes
mental health, domestic violence and substance mis-use. They cover the Waterside area of
the New Forest and have service level agreements with Fawley, Marchwood and Hythe &
Dibden Parish Council. The Handy Trust are applying for a grant to run their school holiday
project that is not already funded and they need to obtain funding for 10 weeks

RECOMMENDATION: That the application for £3,740 be supported.

REASON: This organisation provides much need support for families, often living in
deprivation, during the school holidays. This reduces anti-social behavior from young people
as well as offering free food to those children living in poverty.

Page 103



K | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:

Families Matter | They have had a huge increase in demand for their services this
year due to the closure of many Children’s Centres and the
reduction of CAMHS and Children’s services. They need to take on
more staff to work with families in distress. These workers need to
be suitably trained and qualified and need to be paid.

TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDATION
£35,000 £40,000 £3,000

SUMMARY: Families Matter is a small local charity based in Hythe which helps families in
need in the Waterside area. They support parents through parenting classes and groups for
parents and children with special needs, autism, mental health needs etc. We visit families in
their own home and support them through a crisis with their children (ie separation, domestic
violence, behavioural problems etc). They work closely local schools, supporting children in
the transition to secondary. They have a puppet project that goes in to schools to deliver
presentation on bullying, staying safe online recycling etc. They also run groups for people
with dementia and their carers and for families with drug alcohol additions.

RECOMMENDATION: That the funding request for £6,000 not be recommended but a
revised grant of £3,000 be supported.

REASON: This organisation provides valuable advice and support to the most vulnerable

families and parents within the District. The grant would go some way to support further
outreach work in the local community.

Page 104




L | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:

Copythorne Play Area Fund a playground in Copythorne Village
TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDATION
£50,122 £27,122 £23,000
SUMMARY:

Friends of Copythorne Playground are looking to bring a playground to the local
community, the largest parish in the district to not have a children’s playground. With 237
children aged under 10 and 121 aged between 11-15 the parish has the demand,
something which grows on a daily basis, due to the primary schools which have a
catchment of 469 pupils.

RECOMMENDATION: That the funding request of £23,000 be supported.

REASON:

Copythorne village is one of the largest villages in the District which does not have a
playground for its youngest residents. The village has approximately 334 resident children

who would benefit both physically and mentally from the facility. The project is consistent
with the Council’'s Corporate Plan priorities. The scheme is sustainable and deliverable.

Page 105




M | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:
Fawley Rugby Club To install floodlights on the playing
pitches
TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDATION
£65,640 £37,000 £28,600
SUMMARY:

Since 2014 the club has grown in numbers of both playing and non-playing members. The junior
numbers have increased from 25 to 140 whilst the seniors have increased from 32-50 players.
They are working with the local community, schools and the RFU to get more people active
through breakfast clubs, touch rugby, women and girls and walking rugby. Floodlights are
necessary to ensure that these groups can continue training and participating throughout the
winter.

RECOMMENDATION: That the full funding request be granted.

REASON:

The scheme is in line with the council priorities of improving the wellbeing of those who live in the
district and would support those within an area of deprivation. The scheme will assist with the
deficit of facilities within the district by allowing greater use of current facilities with secured

funding from external sources most notably the National Governing Body of Rugby, reducing the
cost impact on the district.

Page 106



N | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:

Hythe Sea Scouts Foreshore erosion protection
TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDATION
£80,000 £40,000 £0
SUMMARY:

The headquarters of Hythe Seas Scouts Group (4™ New Forest East) is based in Shore
Road, Hythe. The site and the building that house the group is under threat from severe
coastal erosion, the adjoining SSSI is disappearing at a rate of 1m pa. NFDC coastal
defence team have identified options that can safeguard the site for between 10-20 years
and the group are working to implement these. The site is NFDC owned.

RECOMMENDATION: That the funding request of £40,000 not be supported.
REASON:

The Council has an agreed policy that this part of the District’'s coastline will not be
defended, and as the Sea Scouts already have sufficient funds to undertake the first phase
of the foreshore works it was not felt appropriate to fund landscaping and fencing works to
land that the Council itself owned, especially as Council resources had already been used to
assist with the various applications to carry out these works. Therefore other funding
streams should be explored within the Council.

Page 107




O | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:

Marchwood Girl Guides Building a new community building for
girl guides and scouts

TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDATION
£429,800 £394,000 £20,000
SUMMARY:

Create a new combined community/scout and guide hall for the village of Marchwood. This
will replace a damp dilapidated hall on the recreation ground and reduce the reliance on
other facilities.

RECOMMENDATION: That an award of £35,800 not be recommended by a revised grant of
£20,000 be supported.

REASON:

The Group felt that this was a worthy project bringing together two organisations as the
primary users of the facility with extension of further community use of the building. The

group were keen to see the organisation complete their scheme and felt that the award
would help them achieve this.

Page 108



Q | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:

SPUD Redevelopment of ArtSway site
to offer a creative hub and
home to SPUD

TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDATION
£180,000 £160,000 £0
SUMMARY:

The redevelopment and refurbishment of the ArtSway building as a new creative hub.
Creating long term stability for SPUD’s award winning programme for young people whilst
developing a hub for the creative economy of the district contributing to the cultural and
artistic life of the New Forest. This would support SPUD in their movement to become
more less reliant on grant funding whilst fulfilling an identified gap in provision (Arts
Council England considers the New Forest as an area of low engagement).

RECOMMENDATION: That the funding request of £20,000 not be supported.
REASON:
This project would have limited impact of the whole of the community focusing on a limited

number of individuals. Other sources of funding had yet to be obtained and the Council
would be granting an award at risk.

Page 109




P | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:

Totton & Eling Tennis Club Installation of LED floodlights to
decrease maintenance needs, increase
energy efficiency and improve the
financial viability of the facility

TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDATION
£25,000 £18,500 £6,5000
SUMMARY:

Totton and Eling Tennis Centre is a popular facility providing free and affordable tennis
opportunities to around 500 regular users every week. The club have worked with the local
schools, college the LTA and the district council to encourage more people to be active and
take part in tennis. The outdated lights are inefficient and costly. The hope is to replace the
system with an LED lighting system to ensure more reliability and less inefficiency in terms
of electricity and light pollution.

RECOMMENDATION: That the funding request of 23% of the total costs up to a maximum
of £6,500 be supported, subject to Totton & Eling Town Council funding the remaining 75%.
REASON:

The Group recognised the excellent work that this organisation does in the local community
for individuals of all ages and the importance of the facility within the district. The application

was presented by the centre operator on behalf of the Town Council. The Group agreed to
fund the programme supports the Corporate Plan.

Page 110



R | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:

Sway Village Hall Sway Village Hall cinema equipment
TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDATION
£5,450 £0 £2,440
SUMMARY:

With regard to the Improvement Project, our main short-term challenge is to raise enough to
install Cinema and Live Screenings and in the medium-term to open a Film Club and run a
successful film and live screenings programme for the benefit of Sway & District residents.
One challenge is to raise enough funds to install the Cinema, then to run the Cinema and
finally to establish a skilled and resourceful group of volunteers to manage a Film Club.
Friends of Sway Village Hall have taken on responsibilities in fund-raising and finance and
one person is responsible for finding volunteers and managing film acquisition

RECOMMENDATION: That the funding request for £5,440 not be recommended but a
revised grant of £2,440 be supported as this would fund the initial 6 months of this project
which would then become self-financing.

REASON:

This award would cover the first year’s costs of the scheme and allow the programme to
become self-sustaining moving forward in to future years. The scheme has been identified
as a local need, supporting the local character of the village and enhancing social cohesion,
reducing levels of social isolation and satisfying the corporate plan objectives.

Page 111



S | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:

Totton Time Bank To fund a part time broker and coordinator for
the time bank that is a new venture.

TOTAL COST OTHER FUNDS/INCOME RECOMMENDATION
£15,000 £0 £0
SUMMARY:

A Time Bank is a social and support mechanism for a community to exchange skills,
experience and interests. Individuals and organisations earn time credit by giving practical
help and support to others and spend their credits when they need some help themselves.
There are 300 timebanks in the UK and each on is unique. As part of the time for Hampshire
project run by Timebanking UK and HCC a workshop established a need and a working
group that has identified the area of focus.

RECOMMENDATION: That the funding request of £15,000 not be supported.
REASON:

The request was for 100% of the project cost which does not meet the grant eligibility
criteria. In addition, no other sources of funding had been secured. Members were also
aware that the Council’'s Residents Involvement Officer had pledge to give some financial
support (£2,000) from the Council's housing budget with a view to assisting isolated tenants
within the Totton area. The Council would, through this contact, assist the organisation to
build contacts so that they are able to secure funding from other sources in the first instance.

Page 112



T | APPLICANT: REASON FOR APPLICATION:

Community First | a)Annual operating cost - Voluntary sector support and
New Forest Volunteer Centre

b) Operating the Night Stop programme

c) Contribution towards the Healthy Walks

TOTAL COST OTHER INCOME RECOMMENDATION
(a) £112,950 £56,959 £40,000
(b) £69,000 £39,000 £15,000
(c) £6,330 £1,500 £2,500

SUMMARY:

a) CFNF provides support across the whole of the voluntary sector in the New Forest. This
involves activities such as: DBS checks; funding advice; assistance with setting up and
operating groups. With its work in training and operating the volunteer centre/volunteer
placement, it also contributes to routes to work. It also acts as a representative voice for
the sector and is involved in many technical working groups and strategic bodies across
the district. Community First New Forest also works in partnership with statutory
organisations to deliver a range of projects.

b) Night stop is a programme which helps to tackle homelessness in those aged 16-24 by
emergency overnight accommodation with local volunteers, and support in to longer term
housing.

¢) The Healthy Walks programme is a partnership between the National Park, NFDC and
Community First New Forest which sees the New Forest walking for health programme
administrated and volunteer walk leaders trained and supported to deliver walks at
various locations across the district.

RECOMMENDATION(S):

(a) That a grant award of £56,000 not be recommended but a grant of £40,000 be supported
as in the previous year;

(b) That a grant award of £30,000 not be supported but £15,000 be supported for the first 6
months of the programme. Housing Officers would work with the organisation to shape
the future service so that it meets local need following the introduction of the
Homelessness Reduction Act 2017; and

(c) That the grant request of £2,500 be supported.

REASON:

Members were aware that internal staffing changes, at a senior level had resulted in a
reduction of the payroll. As such the previous years’ grant award was felt appropriate for the

forthcoming year.

The Healthy Walks programme, where the Council was the primary funder, remained a
popular programme, key to the council’s health promotion and was good value for money.

Page 113




The numbers of overnight stays secured through the Nightstop programme had reduced
significantly from previous years owing to safeguarding issues. There was a need to change
the provision of the service, so that suitable accommodation for the most vulnerable
residents was secured.

Page 114



GTT obed

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 2018/2019

ITEM

OBJECTIVE

METHOD

LEAD OFFICER

16 JANUARY 2018

Safer New Forest Partnership Plan

To consider the Plan

Report to Panel

Grainne
O’Rourke/Rosemary
Rutins

Community Grants Task & Finish
Group

To consider Task & Finish Group findings

Report to Panel

Colin Read

Key Actions & Service Review
Programme Update

To consider progress

Report to Panel

Rebecca Drummond

13 MARCH 2018

Homelessness Act

To consider the implications of the Act

Presentation/report to Panel

Ryan Stevens

Housing Allocation Policy Review

To consider the current policy and need for future
changes

Report to Panel

Ryan Stevens

19 JUNE 2018

Dibden Golf Centre

To receive the bi-annual update from the Chairman
of the Task & Finish Group

Verbal update to Panel

Clir B Andrews/Colin
Read

Health & Wellbeing Agenda

To consider health and wellbeing matters in the
District

Report to Panel

Jamie Burton/Colin
Read

/. Wa}| epuaby



9TT abed

ITEM

OBJECTIVE

METHOD

LEAD OFFICER

18 SEPTEMBER 2018

20 NOVEMBER 2018

Dibden Golf Centre

To receive the bi-annual update from the Chairman
of the Task & Finish Group

Verbal update to Panel

Clir B Andrews/Colin
Read

15 JANUARY 2019
Community Grants Task & Finish To consider Task & Finish Group findings Report to Panel Colin Read
Group
Safer New Forest Partnership Plan To consider inputting into the Plan. Report to Panel Grainne

O’Rourke/Rosemary
Rutins




	Agenda
	4 Key Actions and Service Review Programme Update
	5 Safer New Forest Partnership - Strategic Assessment & Priorities for Partnership Plan
	Safer NF Strategic Assessment 2017
	Safer NF Partnership Plan 17-18

	6 Community Grants Task & Finish Group
	COMMUNITY  OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL: 16 JANUARY 2018
	COMMUNITY GRANTS TASK & FINISH GROUP
	1. BACKGROUND
	2. PROCESS
	3.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
	Further information: Background Papers:

	Forest Arts Centre

	7 Work Programme

